
 

 

    LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

             100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

          Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

         Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219 

 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

BUSINESS MEETING 

Thursday, July 21, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – 6:00 p.m. 

 

NOTE: The meeting is being held as an in-person and virtual public meeting using Zoom. Directions 

on how to access the meeting online or via phone are available at lowerprovidence.org.  
 

▪ The meeting is video recorded for posting on the Township website. 

▪ A video camera has been installed in the Township Auditorium for security purposes. 

 

Call to Order 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Protocol for Hybrid Meetings 

 

Roll Call:   

__ G. Neights__ C. Coless __ J. Darby __ P. MacFarland __ J. Sorgini __A. Rozinsky  

       

Chairman’s Comments 

 

1. Presentations 

a. Introduction of new Director of Human Resources Kristin Maas 

b. Commendations of Life Saving - Police Department and EMS 

c. Student representative report - Anna Rozinsky 

d. Municipal energy resilience by adopting distributed energy resources (DER) 

 

2. Consent Agenda   

a. Acceptance of the minutes of the Board of Supervisors meeting of June 16, 

2022 and workshop of June 17, 2022  

 

 The following Meeting Minutes  

• Environmental Advisory Council 

• Parks & Recreation Board  

• Planning Commission – Not yet approved 

• Sewer Authority 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

b. Monthly Reports - June 

• Community Development 

• Community Relations 

• Finance 

• Parks and Recreation 

• Police 

• Public Works 

c. Fiscal Matters 

1. Authorization for payment of bills: $802,985.31 

2. Treasurer’s Report 

3. Escrow Releases 

a. Audubon Square V, Escrow Release #7 in the amount of 

$30,980.69 

b. Courts at Brynwood Phase II, Escrow Release #6 in the amount 

of $87,942.00 

 

Motion to Accept Consent Agenda ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained ___ 

 

3. New Business 

a. Consideration of request for waiver of land development, 3922 Ridge Pike 

      Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___ 

b. Consideration of preliminary land development plan, 420 Church Road 

      Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___ 

c. Consideration of truck purchase proposal 

      Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___ 

d. Consideration of real estate tax audit proposal 

     Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___ 

e. Appointment to fill unexpired term on the Environmental Advisory Council 

     Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___ 

f. Consideration of Resolution 22-22, approving application for Montgomery 

County Transportation Program grant 

     Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___ 

g. Appointment of special counsel to the Board of Supervisors 

      Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___ 

 

4. Announcements/Meetings 

• Zoning Hearing Board – July 28 at 7:00 p.m. 

• Sewer Authority - August 10 at 4:30 p.m. 

• Environmental Advisory Council - August 15 at 6:00 p.m. 

• Library Board – August 15 at 7:00 p.m. 

• Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee - August 17 - Cancelled 

• Planning Commission – August 24 at 7:00 p.m.  

• Zoning Hearing Board – August 25 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

5. Comments and Other Business 

 

6. Courtesy of Floor (not to exceed 3 minutes per person) 



 

 

 

7. Adjournment  

     

 Next Business Meetings:  August 18, 2022 (No meeting the first Thursday of 

August) 

           September 1, 2022 
 

The Board of Supervisors meets on the first and third Thursday of each month.  The agenda can be found 

approximately 3 to 5 days in advance on the Township website: www.lowerprovidence.org.  Click on the 

“Agenda” tab. 

http://www.lowerprovidence.org/


 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
June 16, 2022 
 
 

Page 1 of 4 

 

   

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS BUSINESS MEETING 

June 16, 2022 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order: Chairman Neights called the hybrid live/virtual meeting to order at 7:08 p.m.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Protocol for Hybrid Meetings: Chairman Neights provided an overview of the protocols for public 

participation for members of the public attending the meeting virtually over Zoom. 

 

Roll Call:   

a. The following Board members were in attendance: Chairman Neights, Vice-Chair Coless, 

Supervisors Darby, Sorgini and MacFarland. 

b. Also, in attendance were: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager; Michael Clarke and Lauren Gallagher, 

Township Solicitors; Tim Woodrow, Township Engineer; Mike Mrozinski, Community 

Development; Michael Jackson, Chief of Police; and Methacton School District Student 

Representative, Chinmay Bapat. 

 

Chairman’s Comments 

Chairman Neights announced that an executive session was held prior to the meeting on June 16, 2022 

to discuss land acquisition, legal and personnel matters.  

 

Chairman Neights gave an update on the progress of the strategic and action planning initiative, 

explaining that the Board of Supervisors has held two public workshops so far and that they are making 

great progress. A third public workshop is scheduled for June 17 at 2:30 PM. 

 

Proclamations - Chairman Neights read the Juneteenth Proclamation, proclaiming June 19, 2022 as 

Juneteenth Freedom Day. 

 

1) Presentations 

A) Introduction of new police officers – Melanie Faddis and Kyle Hirsch 

i) Chief Jackson introduced the two newest patrol officers and provided biographies for each. 

Both officers started work on Monday, June 13th.  

B) 2021 audit report – Carl Hogan from BBD provided a summary of the 2021 Township Financial 

Audit. He reported an unmodified opinion on all funds and government activities with the 

exception of one qualified opinion relating to the Lower Providence Township Sewer Authority 

pension plan, which is due to delayed actuarial data from the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement 

System out of the Township’s control. 

C) Stormwater Part 5 – Tim Woodrow gave a presentation to the Board outlining the 
Township’s stormwater obligations under the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System 
(MS4) program, specifically highlighting ongoing and increasing issues with flooding 
throughout the Township. He explained that the Township should continue to anticipate 
and effectively prepare for extreme weather events that cause flooding throughout the 
Township. 

D) Student Representative report from Chinmay Bapat 

 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
June 16, 2022 
 
 

Page 2 of 4 

 

   

2) Consent Agenda  

i) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 1(a),  

1(b), and 1(c), including moving the meeting minutes of the June 2, 2022, business meeting 

and the June 1, 2022 workshop, into the record, and approving payment of the bills totaling 

$609,724.79. Vice Chair Coless seconded the motion.   

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

3) Old Business 

A) Consideration of Resolution 22-19, granting conditional use approval for 2619 Ridge Pike 

i) Michael Clarke spoke regarding the Conditional Use Decision for 2619 Ridge Pike. 

ii) MOTION: Vice-Chair Coless made a motion to approve the Resolution 22-19 granting 

conditional use approval for 2619 Ridge Pike . Supervisor Sorgini seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

4) New Business 

A) Consideration of request for waiver of fence standards at 1008 Doris Drive 

i) Mike Mrozinski introduced Yiqian Lian, the property owner of 1008 Doris Drive, who 

presented his request for a fence waiver to permit the installation of a six-foot-high solid 

style fence in the front yard along the Vincent Drive frontage. 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve the request for waiver of fence 

standards at 1008 Doris Drive. Supervisor Darby seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

B) Request for waiver of land development, Evansburg Winery, 3855 Germantown Pike 

i) Mike Mrozinski discussed the request to enclose a pavilion, resulting in the need for a waiver 

of land development. He introduced Yuval Blat, the property owner, who explained the 

proposed improvements. 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve the request for a waiver of 

land development for Evansburg Winery, 3855 Germantown Pike. Supervisor Darby 

seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

C) Consideration of letter of support for Perkiomen Creek Watershed Initiative. 

i) E.J. Mentry, Township Manager, requested the Board approve the letter of support for the 

Perkiomen Creek Watershed Initiative, as presented by Crystal Gilchrist at the June 2, 2022 

Board of Supervisors meeting 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve to the letter of support for the 

Perkiomen Creek Watershed Initiative. Vice-Chair Coless seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

D) Consideration of Resolution 22-20, PennDOT policy and procedure for consultant selection 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
June 16, 2022 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 

 

   

i) E.J. Mentry, Township Manager, discussed the Resolution 22-20, PennDOT policy and 

procedure for consultant selection in connection with the Park/Eagleville/Crawford 

intersection project. 

ii) MOTION: Vice-Chair Coless made a motion to approve Resolution 22-20, PennDOT police 

and procedure for consultant selection. Supervisor Sorgini seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0 

 

E) Update on hybrid meeting attendance 

i) E.J. Mentry, Township Manager, presented data on hybrid meeting attendance from the three 

month trial of utilizing Zoom for hybrid meetings of all public meetings..  

ii) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to discontinue hybrid meetings for all but 

Board of Supervisors meetings. Supervisor Darby seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passes 4-1 with Chairman Neights dissenting. 

 

5) Announcements/Meetings 

A) Board of Supervisors Strategic Planning Workshop – June 17 at 2:30 p.m. 

B) Annual Indian Head Watershed Fishing Derby for ages 4-12 will be held at Hoy Park on June 18 

from 8 to 10am, registration starts at 7:30am. 

C) Environmental Advisory Council – June 20 at 6:00 p.m. 

D) Library Board meeting – June 20 at 7:00 p.m. 

E) Parks & Recreation Board - June 21 at 7:00 p.m. 

F) Planning Commission meeting – June 22 at 7:00 p.m. - Cancelled 

G) Zoning Hearing Board meeting – June 23 at 7:00 p.m. 

H) Concert in Park on – June 26 at 7:00 p.m. 

I) Fireworks on July 4th event 

 

6) Comments and other Business 

A) Supervisor Sorgini – Sewer Authority is wrapping up most of the 2021 projects. 

B) Supervisor Darby – Montgomery County will be holding a large Juneteenth Celebration on June 

18-19. 

C) Vice-Chair Coless – The supervisor packets will be online prior to the Board of Supervisors 

meeting. Comprehensive Planning is winding down. 

D) Chairman Neights – Complementing Vice-Chair Coless and Supervisor MacFarland on the 

Comprehensive Planning. Also, attended a Pollinator event at Mill Grove. 

E) Supervisor Darby – Thank you to all Township staff for the Meet, Greet, & Eat event on June 

11th. 

F) Chairman Neights – the Board will be reconvening in Executive Session at the conclusion of the 

business meeting to discuss potential litigation. 

 

7) Courtesy of the Floor  

A) There was no public comment. 

 

8) Adjournment 

A) MOTION:  Chairman Neights made a motion to adjourn. Supervisor Darby seconded the 

motion. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:50 PM. 

 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
June 16, 2022 
 
 

Page 4 of 4 

 

   

Next Business Meetings:  July 21, 2022 

    August 18, 2022 

    No meeting the first Thursday of July and August 

 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Workshop 
June 17, 2022 

Page 1 of 1 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WORKSHOP 

June 17, 2022 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Attendance:   

a. The following were in attendance: Chairman Neights, Vice Chair Coless, Supervisors Darby, 

MacFarland, Sorgini, and Township Manager E.J. Mentry. 

b. The workshop was called to order at 2:30 p.m.  

 

1. Review of June 1st Workshop Data and Discussions 

A) Chairman Neights provided an overview of the strategic planning process and the proposed 

timeline for next steps, as well as a brief recap of the previous workshop held on June 1st. 

B) Supervisor Sorgini suggested discussing specific areas and projects that the Township can begin 

allocating funding toward immediately. The Supervisors decided to continue the exercise of 

discussing each initiative area, allotting ten minutes to each one with each Supervisor having two 

minutes to share their thoughts. 

 

2) Potential Initiative Areas 

A) The following initiative and project areas were discussed: Ridge Pike Improvements, Business 

Development, Sidewalks/Trails, Community Programming, Community Center and Library, 

Open Space, and Staff Planning. 

B) There was additional discussion on township budgeting and ways to identify and increase 

revenue sources. Township Manager Mentry explained that there would likely be significant 

increase in staffing and personnel costs in the 2023 budget. The Board discussed the need to 

adequately address staffing for current service levels before adding services and programming. 

C) There was additional discussion on the status of operating agreements for Fire and EMS, 

exploration of a stormwater fee and authority, and strategic utilization of the Township’s fund 

balance.  

D) The remaining initiatives will be discussed at the next workshop. 

 

3) Comments and Other Business 

A) None 

 

4) Courtesy of the Floor 

A) No comments. 

 

5) Adjournment – The workshop adjourned at 4:35 p.m. 

 

 

Next Workshop:  Date To Be Determined 

 



Minutes of Monday, May 16, 2022 Lower Providence Environmental Advisory Council Meeting 

 

1. Approval of Minutes: Mr. Lulis made a motion to approve last month’s minutes. Mr. Zollers 

seconded, minutes approved 3-0.  

2. Old Business 

a. Subcommittee Reports 

i. The EAC was asked to table at an EV event at Ursinus College, co-sponsored by 

Representatives Webster and Ciresi.  

ii. Ms. McCool presented that MS4 plan has been completed and posted online. 

Series of presentations have been given to BOS with one more. Plan is with DEP 

for final approval. 13 improvements proposed, 2 in LP, list subject to change. 

Some discussion of possible projects and relation to other township stormwater 

issues followed. Plan was posted at 

https://www.lowerprovidence.org/sites/g/files/vyhlif4626/f/uploads/3d-

draft_preliminary_scwa_multi-

municipal_prp_plan_2022_final_for_distribution.pdf 

iii. Mr. Zollers presented some images of low-hanging fruit for improving sidewalk / 

trail connectivity. Mr. Zollers will prepare a list of known such locations. Mr. 

Neights added discussion of the 9/11 trail through Lower Providence and 

improving its route from Mill Grove up through Trooper Road. [Check if this is in 

the Open Space Plan]. 

iv. Parallel review – the board discussed development of a formal development 

review process. Mr. Lulis and Mr. Zollers to discuss offline. E.J. suggested 

Brightview solar development as an option and will invite Brightview to present 

to the EAC.  

v. Mr. Lulis presented on historical preservation. He mentioned the Casselberry 

House has a high priority for preservation and added that subcommittee 

volunteers could have an important role in historic preservation.  

b. Mr. Lulis noted that everyone at this EAC meeting was at the open house. There were 

over 60 attendees with a lot of valuable feedback provided. Next engagement 

opportunity is June 11, 11 AM to 3 PM at the township building.  

c. Committee and subcommittee volunteers have been advertised, some applications have 

been received and to be reviewed by the committee.  

d. Coordination with Perkiomen Creek property owner is ongoing.  

e. Ms. McCool noted the correct date for the Hoy Park Fishing Derby.  

3. New Business 

a. Joe Webster is doing an EV legislative event at Ursinus to build awareness of coming EV 

infrastructure on June 4.  

b. Alternative Fuel Vehicle program through DEP - $1,000 reimbursement grant towards EV 

cost. Mr. Zollers suggested that summarizing important qualifications for the grant 

would be helpful.  

4. No comments or other business 

https://www.lowerprovidence.org/sites/g/files/vyhlif4626/f/uploads/3d-draft_preliminary_scwa_multi-municipal_prp_plan_2022_final_for_distribution.pdf
https://www.lowerprovidence.org/sites/g/files/vyhlif4626/f/uploads/3d-draft_preliminary_scwa_multi-municipal_prp_plan_2022_final_for_distribution.pdf
https://www.lowerprovidence.org/sites/g/files/vyhlif4626/f/uploads/3d-draft_preliminary_scwa_multi-municipal_prp_plan_2022_final_for_distribution.pdf


5. Mr. Bob Garrett explained about flooding issues relating to adjacent development and inquired 

about how he can obtain assistance regarding whitewater conditions and post-storm pooling. 

E.J. Mentry to follow up.  

6. Erin motioned to adjourn, Joe seconded, carries 3-0. 



 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP    

PARKS & RECREATION 

April 19, 2022, MEETING MINUTES 

 

1) Call to Order. 

A)  Amy Johnston-Smith called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m.  

2) Pledge of Allegiance 

3) Roll Call: 

A) The following Parks & Recreation board members were in attendance: Amy Johnston-Smith, Beth Ann 

Mazza, Ray Lotfi, Michelle Brown, Jean Akers, and Erin Di Paolo. Stephanie Padula was absent.  

B) Also, in attendance:  Karen Hegedus, Recreational Superintendent, Student Rep. Iris Gong. Also, Mrs. 

Cara Coless, Board Liaison. 

 

4) Meeting Minutes: 

A) Review/Approve meeting minutes of March 15, 2022. 

B)  MOTION: Erin Di Paolo made a motion to approve minutes of March 15, 2022, Michele Brown 

seconded the motion. The motion passed 6-0. 

 

5) New Business  

A) Meeting on May 17th has been canceled due to Election 

B) Park Tour, 8:30am – 11:00am on Saturday May 7th or May 14th, majority rules. Email Jane. 

C) Summer Camp Updates – Registration began February 28 – Eagleville- Sold out, Woodland-76, 

Trailblazers-Sold Out, Lil Perks – 40 total for all 3 sessions. 

 

6) Old Business 

A) Egg Hunt was well attended it was a totally sponsored event. 

B) ARC Babysitting course was Sold Out. 

 

7)   Board Comments  

A)  Jean Akers Tree/Parks committee update on Parks and with the committee would like to see happen.  

B)  Michele Brown – Programs committee met with Jane Delaney, Karen Hegedus and Karen Barron and 

how things work on the programming side and sponsorship forms. Possible updates to both. Possible 

sites for indoor sites. Additionally, Erin Di Paolo stated that there should be staffing added to 

department for all the added events. There should be more than one person at the events. Amy-Johnston 

Smith stated that they know it’s a different budget, but it should be part of the budget ask for 2023. 

  

8)  Supervisor Liaison Report 

Cara Coless gave an update about the Comprehensive Plan presentation on May 4th at 7:00pm at the 

Lower Providence Firehouse. 

 

9) Motion to Adjourn. 

A) MOTION:  Beth Ann Mazza made a motion to adjourn. Erin Di Paolo seconded the motion. The motion 

passed 6-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 

 

Next Meeting: June 21, 2022 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LIFE SAVING 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Officer Devon R. Auge 

On March 18, 2022 at 8:13 AM, Lower Providence Township Police Officers were dispatched to the roof 

of 1001 Adams Avenue for a medical emergency.  While officers were still enroute, police dispatch advised 

that the patient was unresponsive, and CPR was in progress.  Another employee, Edward Lehan, began 

Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) while others called 911.  Corporal Slattery immediately requested 

the fire department be dispatched due to the complexity of the patient’s location.  Upon arrival, Corporal 

Slattery recognized the patient to be unresponsive.  Without delay, Corporal Slattery safely relocated the 

patient to a dry section of the roof, where he then applied an automated external defibrillator (AED).  Within 

seconds the AED delivered a shock to the patient and Corporal Slattery began Cardiopulmonary 

Resuscitation (CPR).  Edward Lehan assisted officers by assembling a bag valve mask to provide the patient 

with rescue breaths. Shortly thereafter, Officer Auge arrived on scene and began to assemble a LUCAS 

life-saving machine, to assist in maintaining chest compressions. An additional shock from the AED was 

administered and then the LUCAS machine was applied to the patient by both Corporal Slattery and Officer 

Auge. Corporal Slattery continued to provide the patient with rescue breaths until Emergency Medical 

Service professionals took over medical care.   

 

A collaborative effort amongst the Lower Providence Police Officers, Fire Department, and EMS personnel 

was involved in extracting the patient from the roof of the office building to the ambulance. As a result of 

the lifesaving actions of Corporal Slattery, Officer Auge, EMS personnel, and Edward Lehan, the patient 

survived, and he is on the road to recovery. 

 

Your actions in this incident represent an outstanding accomplishment in the protection and preservation 

of life.  You are to be congratulated for your performance and the professional manner in which you 

conducted yourself in this matter.  As a result, you are being awarded this Life Saving Commendation in 

conformance with General Order 303 on this 21st day of July 2022. 

 

By order of, 

 

 

 

Michael Jackson 

Chief of Police 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LIFE SAVING 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Corporal Michael G. Slattery 

On March 18, 2022 at 8:13 AM, Lower Providence Township Police Officers were dispatched to the roof of 1001 Adams 

Avenue for a medical emergency.  While officers were still enroute, police dispatch advised that the patient was 

unresponsive, and CPR was in progress.  Another employee, Edward Lehan, began Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) 

while others called 911.  Corporal Slattery immediately requested the fire department be dispatched due to the complexity 

of the patient’s location.  Upon arrival, Corporal Slattery recognized the patient to be unresponsive.  Without delay, Corporal 

Slattery safely relocated the patient to a dry section of the roof, where he then applied an automated external defibrillator 

(AED).  Within seconds the AED delivered a shock to the patient and Corporal Slattery began Cardiopulmonary 

Resuscitation (CPR).  Edward Lehan assisted officers by assembling a bag valve mask to provide the patient with rescue 

breaths. Shortly thereafter, Officer Auge arrived on scene and began to assemble a LUCAS life-saving machine, to assist in 

maintaining chest compressions. An additional shock from the AED was administered and then the LUCAS machine was 

applied to the patient by both Corporal Slattery and Officer Auge. Corporal Slattery continued to provide the patient with 

rescue breaths until Emergency Medical Service professionals took over medical care.   

 

A collaborative effort amongst the Lower Providence Police Officers, Fire Department, and EMS personnel was involved 

in extracting the patient from the roof of the office building to the ambulance. As a result of the lifesaving actions of Corporal 

Slattery, Officer Auge, EMS personnel, and Edward Lehan, the patient survived, and he is on the road to recovery. 

 

Your actions in this incident represent an outstanding accomplishment in the protection and preservation of life.  You are 

to be congratulated for your performance and the professional manner in which you conducted yourself in this matter.  As 

a result, you are being awarded this Life Saving Commendation in conformance with General Order 303 on this 21st day of 

July 2022. 

 

By order of, 

 

 

 

Michael Jackson 

Chief of Police 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LIFE SAVING 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Edward Lehan 

On March 18, 2022 at 8:13 AM, Lower Providence Township Police Officers were dispatched to the roof of 1001 

Adams Avenue for a medical emergency.  While officers were still enroute, police dispatch advised that the 

patient was unresponsive, and CPR was in progress.  Another employee, Edward Lehan, began Cardiopulmonary 

Resuscitation (CPR) while others called 911.  Corporal Slattery immediately requested the fire department be 

dispatched due to the complexity of the patient’s location.  Upon arrival, Corporal Slattery recognized the patient 

to be unresponsive.  Without delay, Corporal Slattery safely relocated the patient to a dry section of the roof, 

where he then applied an automated external defibrillator (AED).  Within seconds the AED delivered a shock to 

the patient and Corporal Slattery began Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR).  Edward Lehan assisted officers 

by assembling a bag valve mask to provide the patient with rescue breaths. Shortly thereafter, Officer Auge 

arrived on scene and began to assemble a LUCAS life-saving machine, to assist in maintaining chest 

compressions. An additional shock from the AED was administered and then the LUCAS machine was applied 

to the patient by both Corporal Slattery and Officer Auge. Corporal Slattery continued to provide the patient with 

rescue breaths until Emergency Medical Service professionals took over medical care.   

 

A collaborative effort amongst the Lower Providence Police Officers, Fire Department, and EMS personnel was 

involved in extracting the patient from the roof of the office building to the ambulance. As a result of the lifesaving 

actions of Corporal Slattery, Officer Auge, EMS personnel, and Edward Lehan, the patient survived, and he is on 

the road to recovery. 

 

Your actions in this incident represent an outstanding accomplishment in the protection and preservation of life.  

As a result, you are being awarded this Life Saving Commendation in conformance with General Order 303 on 

this 21st day of July 2022. 

 

By order of, 

 

 

 

Michael Jackson 

Chief of Police 

 



                    
 

 

 

COMMENDATION OF LIFE SAVING 
Paramedic Katelyn Dean  

 

WHEREAS, service to others is the hallmark of LOWER PROVIDENCE EMERGENCY MEDICAL 

SERVICE, and central to how all challenges are met; and  

 

WHEREAS, all Public Safety Organizations must work together to offer an effective strategy to meet the needs 

of our community and residents; and  

 

WHEREAS, the actions of the Lower Providence Community Center Ambulance, Lower Providence Township 

Police Department, and Lower Providence Volunteer Fire Department engaged in prescribed duties as one 

cohesive team; and   

 

WHEREAS, this cohesive and efficient team worked tirelessly and resiliently for one of our community 

members showcasing their skills, dedication, professionalism, and leadership abilities; and  

 

WHEREAS, this team assuming care from a bystander administered care via CPR, AED,  BLS and ALS 

interventions successfully revived a member of this community who had suffered a Cardiac Arrest event; and  

 

WHEREAS, these individuals all working as one in a quick, decisive, and effective manner were able to 

accomplish a feat not normally possible under most circumstances; and  

 

WHEREAS, this accomplishment has allowed this community member to recover and return home to his 

family; and  

 

WHEREAS, this is the basic function of Public Safety Organizations, participants demonstrated the utmost 

compassion and continually make an intensive commitment to service, a commitment that will hopefully remain 

with them in all their future endeavors.  

  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that I, CHRISTOPHER J. REYNOLDS, CHIEF OF OPERATIONS, 

LOWER PROVIDENCE EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES, do hereby present this Commendation of 

Life Saving to PARAMEDIC KATELYN DEAN this 21st  Day of July the year 2022 A.D.  In recognition of 

the positive impact in the community we serve and for the heroic actions and measures that you participated in 

during the Live saving actions during the events of MARCH 18, 2022.  

 

 

 

Christopher J. Reynolds        Janet W. Azzara  

Chief of Operations            President  

  



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

JUNE 2022 

Denise Walsh Page 1 of 2 7/5/2022 

 

HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Out of office (vacation) June 11 – June 24 

 

Communications / Community Outreach 

▪ Website and social media posts of note: 

• Tax collector schedule 

• Share of Rep. Webster’s summer food drive 

• Share of police FB post – De-escalation and active shooter training 

• Draft Comp Plan survey 

• PECO Improvement Project 

• FEMA flood insurance 

• PA American Water notice (switch back to regular treatment) 

• Juneteenth Freedom Day 

• Trash clarification (bulk pickup & recycling) 

• Meet, Greet & Eat event 

• Pride Month proclamation 

• Semi-annual, full volume Limerick siren test 

• Good Morning LP 
 

Meet, Greet & Eat Event 

I joined other staff members, elected officials and first responders at the Meet, Greet & Eat event 

held in Eagleville Park on June 11. 

 

Trash/Recycling/Yard Waste 

There was confusion regarding the new bulk pickup regulations in the most recent contract as 

information in the Mascaro flyer that was mailed to residents was unclear. The flyer also misstated 

the holiday recycling collection. I confirmed clarifications with J.P. Mascaro and posted them to the 

website/social media and sent an email blast. Mascaro was working on an updated mailer. 

 

• Bulk pickup takes place once per month on the last second trash day of the month, not the 

last trash day of the month. 
 

• If recycling collection day falls on Christmas Day or New Year’s Day, recycling 

collection will occur on Wednesday instead of yard waste collection for that week only 

(to avoid two consecutive weeks without collection).  The current informational flyer 

mistakenly included Memorial Day, Independence Day and Labor Day in the holidays 

where there is an adjustment to the recycling schedule. 
 
 

Business Development 

I visited Wame-Shawarma, 4015 Germantown Pike, to discuss a possible new business welcome 

event. I left a flyer and my contact information for owner Wally Saleh. 

 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

JUNE 2022 

Denise Walsh Page 2 of 2 7/5/2022 

Right-to-Know Office 

During the month, requests for information under the Right-to-Know Law were logged and 

processed, totaling 10 police and 7 non-police. (Copies of accident reports prepared as a result of 

an accident investigation conducted by the Lower Providence Township Police Department may 

be obtained through Carfax.) 
 

 

ON-GOING RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Community Relations 

▪ Website 

▪  Facebook, Twitter and Instagram posts  

▪ Press releases 

▪ Constant Contact emails 

▪ Cable Access Channel posts 

▪ Trash & recycling concerns 

 

Meeting / Training Attendance: 

▪ BOS Strategic Planning workshop - June 1 

▪ Staff meeting - June 7 

▪ Interview with HR candidate - June7 

▪ CivicClerk demonstration - June 9 

 

 

Administration 

▪ Weekly email to Board of Supervisors with informational items 

▪ Legal advertisements as needed 

▪ Scheduling, correspondence and miscellaneous tasks as needed 

▪ Preparation and distribution of Board agenda packets 

▪ Completion of post-Board of Supervisor meeting tasks, including posting of meeting 

summary and approved minutes on website 

▪ Attendance at staff-solicitor meetings; preparation and distribution of meeting notes 

▪ Maintenance of Resolution, Minute and Ordinance books 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Denise Walsh 

Community Relations Coordinator 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 

 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 
     
FROM:  Susan C. Law 
   
DATE:  July 12, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: June 2022 Finance Department Monthly Report   
 

Out of office June 20 – July 1 
 
Audit 

• Auditor presented results of 2021 audit at the June 15, 2022 Board meeting. 

• I attended this ZOOM meeting. 
 

Miscellaneous 

• Set up camp counselors in payroll software. 

• Various HR tasks assisting Roseann McGrath. 

• Attended the Meet, Greet and Eat event at Eagleville Park on June 11. 

• Covered the trash line for a week while Denise was on vacation. 

• Attended staff meeting. 

• Interview with HR candidate. 

• E.J. and I had a virtual meeting with TD Bank representatives about adding some 
fraud prevention services to our accounts. Reviewed recommended services on 
the accounts and completed paperwork. These services will be implemented in 
July. 

• Finance Director at Upper Providence requested additional information for 
FEMA reimbursement for the personnel assisting them with IDA cleanup. 

• Multiple calls and emails with Paychex. We have been overbilled for payroll 
services since the beginning of January. I have been dealing with the overcharges 
on a bi-weekly basis and I finally found someone who can correct the billing 
issues. 
 

Ongoing tasks  

• Cash Flow, Revenue and expenditure reports, Treasurer’s and revenue trends 
reports completed. 

• Follow the purchasing policy for proper approval of all purchases. Review open 
POs. 

• Distributed for approval, entered and paid approximately 250 invoices. 
o Follow up with vendors regarding unpaid/past due invoices. 

• Daily reconciliation of receipts for front counter, permits and LPT rec.  



• Billed developers/residents for legal/engineering, alarm violations and other fees 
due the Township. 

• Reviewed all entries to General Ledger. 

• Reconciled all bank accounts, including escrow accounts. 
• Transfer funds to the Library.  



 

 
 

 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PARKS AND RECREATION 

 
MONTHLY REPORT  

June 
 

Administration: 
 

• Daily communication with Joe Chillano, Director of Public Works, to discuss job tasks/duties for   

parks crew. 

• Prepare documents and submit paperwork to the State to retain the Lil Perks Program status of 

being State Certified. This is process requires a lot of components and is very time sensitive. I 

will meet with a member from the State in July to go through the process of getting recertified for 

2023. 

• Met with E.J. to discuss the Meet, Greet and Eat event. 

• Met with the Chief to discuss the Meet, Greet and Eat details. Discussed staffing, supplies that are 

needed and food items. 

• Meet, Greet and Eat! – June 11th 11:00a.m. – 3:00p.m.- Township residents are invited to join the 

LP supervisors and staff for a “Meet, Greet & Eat” event at Eagleville Park. All Township staff 

attended for the event and Hot Dogs, Chips and Kona Ice were available to everyone that 

attended the event.    

• Monthly CCFees 

• Met with Park and Recreation staff throughout the month to prepare for programs, summer camp, 

and special events. 

• June 1st – June 30th prepared for the July 4th event. Meetings scheduled with the Chief, Fire 

Marshal, Public Works crew and the Parks and Recreation staff to review detailed information for 

the event. Set-up itinerary, break down, supplies ordered, fireworks confirmed, light towers 

ordered, signs and PPE supply prepared, glow item & signs/pricing, golf carts, sponsorship board 

and flyers made, D.J. and Porta potty scheduled and confirmed. 

• We sold 31 discounted Movie Tavern tickets in May. Movie Tavern tickets are sold for $8.50 

year -round.  

• We sold 39 discounted Regal Movie ticket. Movie tickets are sold at a discounted price of $10.00 

per ticket year- round. 

• Summer discount tickets are now available to the public for the area amusement parks. In June, 

we sold 15 Dutch Wonderland tickets, 4 knoebels tickets, 13 Morey’s Pier tickets and 7 

Philadelphia Zoo tickets. This year PRPS is offering tickets for Six Flags, Dorney Park and many 

more attractions via online purchasing only and is available on our website for the public to 

partake in. 

• We continue to offer Memorial Donation Program which allows residents to purchase a bench, a 

tree, or a brick in a loved ones honor and have it placed in a special location in one of our 

beautiful parks 

• We continue to offer our Hometown Heroes Program and have been replacing the banners 

throughout Eagleville Park as they are purchased. 

 
Camp Update: 

 

• We conducted our summer camp orientation for our counselors on June 15th and 16th. All parks 

and recreation staff attended the orientation and led the counselors through a few days of 

informative information on summer camp expectations. 

• June 20th – July 29th – Oversee all camp sites and staff on a daily basis and continue to monitor 

any issues that arise. 



 

• Summer Camp began on Monday, June 20th. Camp Perkiomy Eagleville has 99 campers, Camp 

Perkiomy Woodland has 95 campers and Perkiomy Trailblazers has 100 campers registered. Lil 

Perks Camp Session I- 15 campers, Session II- 15 campers, and Session III- 15 campers.  Lil 

Perks accepts 15 campers per session. We’re looking forward to a safe and fun summer! 

Summer Camp runs from June 20th- July 29th. Lil Perks finishes up on August 5th. 

 

Parks: 

 

• GRL landscaping continues to mow and maintain all township properties throughout the 

township. We have an open line of communication with GRL and his staff if any concerns occur. 

• Continue to communicate with Mike Nester and Zach on any matters that need attention.  

• All restrooms at area parks are open and are cleaned on a rotating schedule.  

• Weekend pavilion rentals are reserved for the month of June. We’re already booked for every 

weekend in June and most of July. 

• The new ADA bottle filler fountains with attached pet fountain have arrived and are scheduled to 

be installed at Eagleville and Eskie Park soon.   

• Plaques have been installed on the newly purchased benches in the parks. 

 

Programs: 

 

• R.A.D. Self Defense Class- June 8th – 9th  

• Summer Camp June 27th-July 29th 

• Yoga in the Park 

 

Upcoming Events: 

 

• 26th All American Fireworks Celebration- Monday, July 4th -7:00- 9:30 p.m. 

• Movie in the Park “ENCANTO” -July 20th at dusk. 

• Concert in the Park “Sunday, August 21st, 6:00-8:00pm -Todd O's "River of Dreams - Billy Joel 

Tribute” Get ready to experience an evening of Billy Joel music like never before. Todd and the 

band get the audience involved with all the legendary Billy Joel songs!  

 

Facilities Maintenance: 

 

• Continue to clean Eagleville, Eskie and Evansburg Park bathrooms. They are on a cleaning 

rotation from April through November. 

• Continue to maintain the bathrooms at the MARA complex keep them stocked especially during 

tournaments that they host. 

• Trash is picked up weekly or as needed at area parks 

• Continue to inspect area parks daily 

 

Daily Tasks:  

 

• Return calls and emails daily. 

• Respond to requests from the residents.  

• Continue to participate in Zoom/ in person meetings and webinar with PRPS.  

• Continue to monitor and inspect area parks. 

• Update P & R web page, Facebook, Instagram, MyRec and the marquee as needed 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 

 

Jane C. Delaney 

Director of Parks and Recreation 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
Submitted By: Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 
POLICE FLEET  Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Total 

Miles Traveled 24,136 23,670 24,530 24,533 24,829 146,461 
  

     

INCIDENTS Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Total 

Police Activity (CAD) 1,719 1,754 1,738 2,038 1,904 10,880 

         

ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Total 

Traffic Stops 374 359 370 457 437 2,397 

Traffic Citations 93 84 80 108 103 597 

Non-Traffic Citations 9 7 10 15 10 56 

Criminal Arrests 32 34 35 33 49 210 

Foot and Bike Patrols 167 198 174 179 195 1084 

Traffic Details 130 157 115 169 161 857 

Public Contacts (Minimum) 770 787 832 950 890 5,058 

Formal Personnel Complaints 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Personnel Compliments 1 1 0 2 2 11 

         

JUVENILE CONTACTS Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Total 

Juvenile Contacts 34 42 52 56 43 267 

Juveniles Petitioned 0 1 0 2 2 6 

Warnings Issued 8 7 3 7 11 60 

Citations Issued 0 1 2 3 3 9 

Referral to Other Agencies 0 4 0 2 1 7 

         

ACCIDENTS Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Total 

Total Number of Accidents 35 39 50 51 56 274 

Reportable Accidents 15 11 14 16 23 96 

Non-Reportable Accidents 20 28 36 35 33 178 

 
 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
 

ALARM RESPONSES Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Total 

Total Alarms 45 53 72 57 51 330 

Security Alarms 29 39 58 49 36 243 

Fire Alarms 16 14 14 8 15 87 

       

DETECTIVE DIVISION Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Total 

Investigations 46 63 30 51 55 285 

       

SUBPOENAS FOR COURT  Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Total 

District Court 38-1-20 65 46 61 71 37 302 

Montgomery County  8 4 3 4 2 22 

All Others 1 4 0 0 0 9 

       

DUI TASK FORCE Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 8 0 0 24 0 32 

       

AGGRESSIVE DRIVING Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 0 8 8 33 5 54 

              

DRUG TASK FORCE Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 0 0 14 0 18 66 

       

PA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 26 10 10 15 9 70 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
The following is a list of Community Relations details for June 2022:   

 

On Monday, June 6, Colby Goldsmith began his internship with the police department. He is a student 

at Chestnut Hill College majoring in Criminal Justice. 

 

On Wednesday, June 8, Detective Charlie King and Officer Ryan Gill participated in a C.O.P.S. 5K 

benefit run held at the Lower Perkiomen Valley Park Trail. The organization works to assist the families 

of fallen police officers.  

 

On Saturday, June 11, several officers in the police department attended an open house held at the 

Township Building for community members.  It was an opportunity for the public to meet and greet 

employees and representatives of the various departments.  

 

Between June 13 & 14, the police department held its annual Cop Camp for juveniles between the ages 

of 9-13. The cadets learned about the basic job duties and responsibilities of a police officer to include 

exposure to the other emergency service providers. 

 

On Saturday, June 20, Lt. Hopkins and Detective Nastasi attended a Juneteenth event in Eagleville Park 

hosted by the DEI Task Force. 

 

On Tuesday, June 28, Sgt. Stead read a book to a group of children attending Lil' Perkiomy Camp at 

Eagleville Park.   

 

On Thursday, June 30, Sgt. Stead visited a classroom of Life Skills & Autistic children to discuss the 

role of a police officer in the community.  

 

The following is a list of notable TSU activities for June 2022:   

 

Between June 3-11, the portable speed display trailer was deployed in front of the Lower Providence 

Fire Department warning drivers of an increase in pedestrian traffic because of their annual fair. 

 

On Friday, June 24, Sgt. Stead assisted A Squad with a traffic detail targeting speeding vehicles in the 

Collegeville section of Ridge Pike. 

 

An anonymous resident made a traffic complaint regarding a sight distance issue at the intersection of 

N. Grange Avenue and Ridge Pike. A study was conducted finding there was sufficient sight distance of 

oncoming traffic. 

 

 

 

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 

Youth Aid Panel: 

 

The police department submitted one (1) juvenile to the Montgomery County District Attorney’s 

Office Youth Aid Panel Program.   

 

Curfew: 

 

There were eight (8) violations of the Township’s curfew ordinance during the month. 

 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

JUNE 2022 

Below is a list of some items that the Public Works Department accomplished during the month of June. 

• Meet with Jane Delaney daily to review/ discuss departmental needs 

• All PA One call notifications were reviewed, field marked and responded to appropriately 

• Director reviewed road opening permits, performed inspections where required  

• The department completed various and multiple building maintenance tasks  

• Street signs were repaired/replaced 

• Meet with PW Foreman to discuss work assignments and scheduling 

• Director had several meetings with staff on various topics 

• Mechanics performed routine maintenance on Township fleet and equipment 

• Director approved bills associated with the department 

• Janitor cleaned our buildings and Parks comfort stations during the month 

• PW & Parks guys did trash runs twice this week in our Parks. Every Monday and Friday 

• Director returned phone calls and emails addressing residents’ concerns  

• Director worked on the monthly report 

• Potholes were patched, crews went out with hot asphalt 

• Storm sewer inlets were cleaned prior to any rainstorms 

• PW crews continued preparing roads for 2022 Rd Projects, work includes pipe inspections, 

storm sewer inlet repairs   

• Multiple storm sewer inlet on various Twp roadways were repaired in place. Work associated  

includes cleaning out the inlet, repairing with brick, lintels and concrete. Replacing the top and 

restoration work. 

• I continued to work with our Twp Engineer and Fema for our reimbursement of funds. Fema 

has broken up our project into different projects, this will allow us to receive some funds 

• Traffic signals and streetlights were repaired during the month of June 

• Streamlight property was mowed, this is the area we utilize for parking during the 4th of July 

event 

• A crew member came in over the weekends to clean for pavilion rentals 

• First round of roadside mowing was completed during the month 

• Street sweeping of roadways was completed 

• All crew members participated in the set up for the 4th of July celebration, work includes 

putting up fencing, staging barricades and cones, mowing, picking up golf carts, post no parking 

signs picking up light towers and tree trimming 



• I continued to work with Mcmahon on the APS installation for Parklane/Ridge and Eagleville 

traffic signal 

• 6 crew members work the 4th of July event 

• Set up and break down for the meet, greet and eat event was completed 

• Asphalt was laid along two residents’ driveways to make the transition from the roadway into 

the driveway smoother 

• Tree branches were trimmed at the Elizabeth and E. Mt Kirk naturalized basin 

• All walking paths thru our wooded areas were cleared in Evansburg and Eagleville Parks 

• I met with the candidate for the open HR position    

• Delinquent properties were mowed with high grass violations, determined by Codes Dept 

• St Gab’s field was mowed by the Parks guys 

• The Director began working on my 2023 Capital Budget along with obtaining pricing for new 

equipment needed now 

• PW crew members removed two truck loads of debris that was blocking a storm sewer 

headwall along Smith Rd 

• Smith Road was patched using ¼” asphalt 

• All picnic benches were power washed and painted at Eagleville Park  

• We lost electric to the sewer pumps for Eagleville comfort station. Temporary power has been 

restored, but the project is ongoing 

• I attended multiple meetings with Twp manger pertaining to traffic signal upgrades  

• Mechanics worked diligently to try and repair the bucket truck. We have concluded that the 

1982 bucket truck needs to be replaced 

• Set up and one employee worked the concert in the park event 

•  Two downed trees were removed from roadways 

• The Director worked with the Sewer Authority to resolve any issues pertaining to their ongoing 

main replacement project. Good news is the project more than halfway completed 

• Per the Police, we mowed for a sight distance problem       

 

 

 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 Joseph Chillano 

      

 



 





































































































































































































7/11/2022





Page 1 of 6

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE  BALANCE 

A
1 Tire Cleaner 100 TONS 21.15$                 2,115.00$            0 100 -$                  2,115.00$            2,115.00$            -$                        
2 Work Protection Fence 1000 LF 2.28$                   2,280.00$            0 1,000 -$                  2,280.00$            2,280.00$            -$                        
3 Silt Sox - 12" 1475 LF 4.23$                   6,239.25$            0 1,475 -$                  6,239.25$            6,239.25$            -$                        
4 Concrete Washout 2 EA 510.13$               1,020.26$            0 2 -$                  1,020.26$            1,020.26$            -$                        
5 Inlet Filters 41 EA 151.08$               6,194.28$            0 41 -$                  6,194.28$            6,194.28$            -$                        
6 Inlet Silt Sacks 41 EA 123.31$               5,055.71$            0 41 -$                  5,055.71$            5,055.71$            -$                        
7 Stone Filters 10 EA 76.54$                 765.40$               0 10 -$                  765.40$               765.40$               -$                        
8 Street Sweeping - Our Work Only 3 DAYS 1,227.61$            3,682.83$            0 3 -$                  3,682.83$            3,682.83$            -$                        
9 Temp. Seeding R-O-W 135052 SF 0.09$                   12,154.68$          0 135,052 -$                  12,154.68$          12,154.68$          -$                        

10 Temp. Seed Topsoil Pile 20000 SF 0.04$                   800.00$               0 20,000 -$                  800.00$               800.00$               -$                        
11 Remove E&S Controls 1 LS 4,769.96$            4,769.96$            0.0 1 -$                  4,769.96$            4,769.96$            -$                        

45,077.37$          -$                  45,077.37$          45,077.37$          -$                        

B
1 Clearing/Grubbing 1 LS 15,911.41$          15,911.41$          0 1 -$                  15,911.41$          15,911.41$          -$                        
2 Mill Blacktop Removal 890 SY 3.02$                   2,687.80$            0 890 -$                  2,687.80$            2,687.80$            -$                        
3 Mill Blacktop Removal 8008 SY 3.43$                   27,467.44$          0 8,008 -$                  27,467.44$          27,467.44$          -$                        
4 Dumpster Fence Removal 140 LF 6.17$                   863.80$               0 140 -$                  863.80$               863.80$               -$                        
5 Concrete Dumpster Pad 135 SY 29.14$                 3,933.90$            0 135 -$                  3,933.90$            3,933.90$            -$                        
6 Concrete Curb Removal 2269 LF 6.05$                   13,727.45$          0 2,269 -$                  13,727.45$          13,727.45$          0.00$                      
7 Concrete Walk Removal 3253 SF 1.65$                   5,367.45$            0 3,253 -$                  5,367.45$            5,367.45$            -$                        
8 End Wall Removal 2 EA 531.35$               1,062.70$            0 2 -$                  1,062.70$            1,062.70$            -$                        
9 Outlet Structure Removal 1 EA 531.35$               531.35$               0 1 -$                  531.35$               531.35$               -$                        

10 Remove Temp. Basin Riser 1 EA 531.35$               531.35$               0 1 -$                  531.35$               531.35$               -$                        
11 Inlet Removal 6 EA 649.19$               3,895.14$            0 6 -$                  3,895.14$            3,895.14$            -$                        
12 Remove Concrete Flow Channel 300 SF 5.23$                   1,569.00$            0 300 -$                  1,569.00$            1,569.00$            -$                        
13 Pipe Removal 18" CMP 40 LF 16.92$                 676.80$               0 40 -$                  676.80$               676.80$               -$                        
14 Pipe Removal 18" HDPE 134 LF 15.56$                 2,085.04$            0 134 -$                  2,085.04$            2,085.04$            -$                        
15 Pipe Removal 36" HDPE 172 LF 21.66$                 3,725.52$            0 172 -$                  3,725.52$            3,725.52$            -$                        
16 Remove Rip Rap Swale 240 SY 6.98$                   1,675.20$            0 240 -$                  1,675.20$            1,675.20$            -$                        
17 Sawcutting 850 LF 4.09$                   3,476.50$            0 850 -$                  3,476.50$            3,476.50$            -$                        
18 Traffic Control 1 LS 4,379.40$            4,379.40$            0 1 -$                  4,379.40$            4,379.40$            -$                        

93,567.25$          -$                  93,567.25$          93,567.25$          0.00$                      

C
1 Strip Topsoil & Stockpile Onsite 6350 CY 2.42$                   15,367.00$          0.00 6,349.10 -$                  15,367.00$          15,367.00$          (0.00)$                     
2 Cut, Fill & Compact 8145 CY 3.26$                   26,552.70$          0.00 8,145.00 -$                  26,552.70$          26,552.70$          -$                        
3 Import Clean Fill 2809 CY 13.96$                 39,213.64$          0.00 2,809.00 -$                  39,213.64$          39,213.64$          -$                        
4 Grade Drive-C R-O-W 1690 CY 3.29$                   5,560.10$            0.00 1,690.00 -$                  5,560.10$            5,560.10$            -$                        
5 Re-Grade Existing Basin 8997 SF 0.97$                   8,727.09$            0.00 8,997.00 -$                  8,727.09$            8,727.09$            -$                        
6 Rough Grade Site 104466 SF 0.04$                   4,178.64$            0.00 104,465.60 -$                  4,178.64$            4,178.64$            (0.00)$                     
7 Fine Grade Building Slabs 3025 SY 0.86$                   2,601.50$            0.00 3,025.00 -$                  2,601.50$            2,601.50$            -$                        
8 Grade for Walking Path 2400 SY 4.45$                   10,680.00$          0.00 2,400.00 -$                  10,680.00$          10,680.00$          -$                        

Developer: Oaks Properties Inc., Audubon Land Development  

Removal/Clearing/Demo

Subtotal - Removal/Clearing/Demo

Excavation

Escrow Release No. 6Audubon Square V

DESCRIPTION

Soil and Erosion Control

Subtotal - Soil and Erosion Control

Opinion of Probable Cost
December 13, 2019

14-0105LP
PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002



Page 2 of 6

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE  BALANCE 

Developer: Oaks Properties Inc., Audubon Land Development  

Escrow Release No. 6Audubon Square V

DESCRIPTION

Opinion of Probable Cost
December 13, 2019

9 Bulk Respread Topsoil 1225 CY 12.88$                 15,778.00$          0.00 1,225.00 -$                  15,778.00$          15,778.00$          -$                        
10 Island Respread Topsoil 628 CY 16.00$                 10,048.00$          0.00 628.00 -$                  10,048.00$          10,048.00$          -$                        
11 Fine Grade For Paving 22333 SY 1.08$                   24,119.64$          0.00 22,333.00 -$                  24,119.64$          24,119.64$          -$                        

162,826.31$       -$                  162,826.32$        162,826.32$        -$                        

D
1 Traffic Control 1 LS 1,441.59$            1,441.59$            0.00 1.00 -$                  1,441.59$            1,441.59$            -$                        
2 Tie-Into Existing Storm 3 EA 1,102.80$            3,308.40$            0.00 3.00 -$                  3,308.40$            3,308.40$            -$                        
3 RCP 18"  CL 3 O-Ring/Super Seal 20 LF 49.33$                 986.60$               0.00 20.00 -$                  986.60$               986.60$               -$                        
4 18" HDPE Smooth Bore Pipe 1027 LF 33.16$                 34,055.32$          0.00 1,027.66 -$                  34,055.32$          34,055.32$          (0.00)$                     
5 24" HDPE Smooth Bore Pipe 30 LF 37.61$                 1,128.30$            0.00 30.00 -$                  1,128.30$            1,128.30$            -$                        
6 30" HDPE Smooth Bore Pipe 18 LF 44.28$                 797.04$               0.00 18.00 -$                  797.04$               797.04$               -$                        
7 30"  Corrugated Steel Pipe 20 LF 51.25$                 1,025.00$            0.00 20.00 -$                  1,025.00$            1,025.00$            -$                        
8 36" HDPE Smooth Bore Pipe 179 LF 60.69$                 10,863.51$          0.00 179.00 -$                  10,863.51$          10,863.51$          -$                        
9 36" HDPE Perforated Pipe 673 LF 96.63$                 65,031.99$          0.00 673.00 -$                  65,031.99$          65,031.99$          -$                        

10 Stone Envelope 895 TN 17.27$                 15,456.65$          0.00 895.00 -$                  15,456.65$          15,456.65$          -$                        
11 Stone Backfill 38 TN 18.24$                 693.12$               0.00 38.00 -$                  693.12$               693.12$               -$                        
12 Trench Spoils to Onsite Fills 681 CY 8.03$                   5,468.43$            0.00 681.00 -$                  5,468.43$            5,468.43$            -$                        
13 4' Type C Inlet 8 EA 1,769.96$            14,159.68$          0.00 8.00 -$                  14,159.68$          14,159.68$          -$                        
14 4' Type M Inlet 3 EA 1,557.30$            4,671.90$            0.00 3.00 -$                  4,671.90$            4,671.90$            -$                        
15 4' Type C Modified Inlet 10 EA 3,197.71$            31,977.10$          0.00 10.00 -$                  31,977.10$          31,977.10$          -$                        
16 Storm Manholes 5 EA 2,844.18$            14,220.90$          0.00 5.00 -$                  14,220.90$          14,220.90$          -$                        
17 Outlet Structures 3 EA 8,343.38$            25,030.14$          0.00 3.00 -$                  25,030.14$          25,030.14$          -$                        
18 Crane Rental 1 LS 3,368.15$            3,368.15$            0.00 1.00 -$                  3,368.15$            3,368.15$            -$                        
19 Inlet Grade Adjustment 29 EA 326.62$               9,471.98$            0.00 29.00 -$                  9,471.98$            9,471.98$            -$                        
20 Pour Inlet Bottoms 29 EA 206.69$               5,994.01$            0.00 29.00 -$                  5,994.01$            5,994.01$            -$                        
21 6" Pipe Fdn. Drain with Stone 500 LF 18.51$                 9,255.00$            0.00 500.00 -$                  9,255.00$            9,255.00$            -$                        
22 6" PVC Roof Drains 1100 LF 17.92$                 19,712.00$          0.00 1,100.00 -$                  19,712.00$          19,712.00$          -$                        
23 Underground Retention Basin-B2 1 LS 208,723.62$       208,723.62$       0.00 1.00 -$                  208,723.62$        208,723.62$        -$                        
24 Sawcutting 190 LF 4.09$                   777.10$               0.00 190.00 -$                  777.10$               777.10$               -$                        
25 Tunnel Under Utilities 2 EA 1,238.28$            2,476.56$            0.00 2.00 -$                  2,476.56$            2,476.56$            -$                        

490,094.09$       -$                  490,094.09$        490,094.09$        (0.00)$                     

E
1 Traffic Control 1 LS 937.24$               937.24$               0 1 -$                  937.24$               937.24$               -$                        
2 Tie-Into Existing Manholes 2 EA 2,206.14$            4,412.28$            0 2 -$                  4,412.28$            4,412.28$            -$                        
3 8" PVC SDR 35 1092 LF 26.17$                 28,577.64$          0 1,092 -$                  28,577.64$          28,577.64$          -$                        
4 6" PVC SDR 35 370 LF 29.39$                 10,874.30$          0 370 -$                  10,874.30$          10,874.30$          -$                        
5 Lateral Connections 4 EA 130.92$               523.68$               0 4 -$                  523.68$               523.68$               -$                        
6 Clean Outs in Grass 4 EA 103.69$               414.76$               0 4 -$                  414.76$               414.76$               -$                        
7 Clean Outs in Paving 6 EA 529.98$               3,179.88$            0 6 -$                  3,179.88$            3,179.88$            -$                        
8 Stone Envelope 715 TN 17.27$                 12,348.05$          0 715 -$                  12,348.05$          12,348.05$          -$                        
9 Stone Backfill 356 TN 12.69$                 4,517.64$            0 356 -$                  4,517.64$            4,517.64$            -$                        

10 Trench Spoils to Onsite Fills 550 CY 8.42$                   4,631.00$            0 550 -$                  4,631.00$            4,631.00$            -$                        

Subtotal - Storm Sewer

Sanitary Sewer

Subtotal - Excavation

Storm Sewer

14-0105LP
PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002



Page 3 of 6

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE  BALANCE 

Developer: Oaks Properties Inc., Audubon Land Development  

Escrow Release No. 6Audubon Square V

DESCRIPTION

Opinion of Probable Cost
December 13, 2019

11 4' Dia. Manhole 5 EA 2,425.98$            12,129.90$          0 5 -$                  12,129.90$          12,129.90$          -$                        
12 Manhole Adjustment 6 EA 471.05$               2,826.30$            0 6 -$                  2,826.30$            2,826.30$            -$                        
13 Grease Trap-1,500 Gallon 3 EA 7,843.64$            23,530.92$          0 3 -$                  23,530.92$          23,530.92$          -$                        
14 Sawcutting 300 LF 4.09$                   1,227.00$            0 300 -$                  1,227.00$            1,227.00$            -$                        
15 Temporary Cold Patch 84 SY 54.18$                 4,551.12$            0 84 -$                  4,551.12$            4,551.12$            -$                        
16 Street Repair 100 SY 75.93$                 7,593.00$            0 100 -$                  7,593.00$            7,593.00$            -$                        

122,274.71$       -$                  122,274.71$        122,274.71$        -$                        

F
1 Traffic Control 1 LS 626.23$               626.23$               0 1 -$                  626.23$               626.23$               -$                        
2 Tie-into Existing System 1 EA 873.52$               873.52$               0 1 -$                  873.52$               873.52$               -$                        
3 Ductile Iron Pipe - 4" 310 LF 35.37$                 10,964.70$          0 310 -$                  10,964.70$          10,964.70$          -$                        
4 Ductile Iron Pipe - 6" 160 LF 30.82$                 4,931.20$            0 160 -$                  4,931.20$            4,931.20$            -$                        
5 Ductile Iron Pipe - 8" 520 LF 35.70$                 18,564.00$          0 520 -$                  18,564.00$          18,564.00$          -$                        
6 Stone Envelope 190 TN 17.27$                 3,281.30$            0 190 -$                  3,281.30$            3,281.30$            -$                        
7 Stone Backfill 35 TN 12.69$                 444.15$               0 35 -$                  444.15$               444.15$               -$                        
8 Trench Spoils to Onsite Fills 190 CY 8.03$                   1,525.70$            0 190 -$                  1,525.70$            1,525.70$            -$                        
9 Curb Stop & Box with Corp. 2 EA 1,396.69$            2,793.38$            0 2 -$                  2,793.38$            2,793.38$            -$                        

10 2" Copper 150 LF 36.26$                 5,439.00$            0 150 -$                  5,439.00$            5,439.00$            -$                        
11 4" Valve & Box 3 EA 1,004.05$            3,012.15$            0 3 -$                  3,012.15$            3,012.15$            -$                        
12 6" Valve & Box 1 EA 1,204.77$            1,204.77$            0 1 -$                  1,204.77$            1,204.77$            -$                        
13 8" Valve & Box 2 EA 1,701.00$            3,402.00$            0 2 -$                  3,402.00$            3,402.00$            -$                        
14 8"x 2"  Blowoff 1 EA 1,931.70$            1,931.70$            0 1 -$                  1,931.70$            1,931.70$            -$                        
15 Relocate Fire Hydrant 1 EA 3,968.83$            3,968.83$            0 1 -$                  3,968.83$            3,968.83$            -$                        
16 DIP Fittings 14 EA 374.71$               5,245.94$            0 14 -$                  5,245.94$            5,245.94$            -$                        
17 Thrust Block 17 EA 63.89$                 1,086.13$            0 17 -$                  1,086.13$            1,086.13$            -$                        
18 Testing 1065 LF 0.67$                   713.55$               0 1,065 -$                  713.55$               713.55$               -$                        
19 Sawcutting 100 LF 4.09$                   409.00$               0 100 -$                  409.00$               409.00$               -$                        
20 Temporary Cold Patch 23 SY 53.10$                 1,221.30$            0 23 -$                  1,221.30$            1,221.30$            -$                        
21 Street Repair 34 SY 76.71$                 2,608.14$            0 34 -$                  2,608.14$            2,608.14$            -$                        
22 Meter Pits 3 EA 33,233.07$          99,699.21$          0 3 -$                  99,699.21$          99,699.21$          -$                        

173,945.90$       -$                  173,945.90$        173,945.90$        -$                        

G
1 Curb Excavation/Backfill 7720 LF 3.86$                   29,799.20$          0 7,720 -$                  29,799.20$          29,799.20$          0.00$                      
2 Concrete Curb - 18" 7720 LF 14.00$                 108,080.00$       0.00 7,720 -$                  108,080.00$        108,080.00$        -$                        
3 Curb Seal 7720 LF 0.88$                   6,793.60$            0.00 7,720 -$                  6,793.60$            6,793.60$            -$                        
4 Sidewalk Excavation 22944 SF 1.62$                   37,169.28$          0.00 22,944 -$                  37,169.28$          37,169.28$          -$                        
5 Sidewalk, 4" with Stone 22944 SF 5.97$                   136,975.68$       0.00 22,944 -$                  136,975.68$        136,975.68$        -$                        
6 Handicap Ramps 36 EA 907.46$               32,668.56$          0.00 36 -$                  32,668.56$          32,668.56$          -$                        
7 Truncated Domes 684 SF 26.38$                 18,043.92$          0.00 684 -$                  18,043.92$          18,043.92$          -$                        
8 Concrete Dumpster Pads 2385 SF 10.59$                 25,257.15$          0.00 2,385 -$                  25,257.15$          25,257.15$          -$                        
9 Reinforced Concrete Pavement 1615 SF 9.73$                   15,713.95$          0.00 1,615 -$                  15,713.95$          15,713.95$          -$                        

10 Bollards 16 EA 475.48$               7,607.68$            0.00 16 -$                  7,607.68$            7,607.68$            -$                        

Subtotal - Sanitary Sewer

Public Water

Subtotal - Public Water

Concrete Work

14-0105LP
PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002



Page 4 of 6

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE  BALANCE 

Developer: Oaks Properties Inc., Audubon Land Development  

Escrow Release No. 6Audubon Square V

DESCRIPTION

Opinion of Probable Cost
December 13, 2019

418,109.02$       -$                  418,109.02$        418,109.02$        0.00$                      

H
1 Type A Pavement

a 2A Modified Subbase - 6" 3260 SY 6.31$                   20,570.60$          0 3,260 -$                  20,570.60$          20,570.60$          -$                        
b 4"-25 MM Superpave .3>3  64-22 3260 SY 15.48$                 50,464.80$          0 3,260 -$                  50,464.80$          50,464.80$          -$                        
c 2"-'19 MM Superpave .3>3  64-22 3260 SY 7.88$                   25,688.80$          0 3,260 -$                  25,688.80$          25,688.80$          -$                        
d 1 1/2" -'9.5 MM Superpave .3>3  64-22 3260 SY 6.42$                   20,929.20$          0 3,260 -$                  20,929.20$          20,929.20$          -$                        
e Sweep And Tack 3260 SY 0.62$                   2,021.20$            0 3,260 -$                  2,021.20$            2,021.20$            -$                        

2 Type B Pavement
a 2A Modified Subbase - 6" 1821 SY 6.31$                   11,490.51$          0 1,821 -$                  11,490.51$          11,490.51$          -$                        
b 5 "-'25 MM Superpave .3>3  64-24 1821 SY 19.70$                 35,873.70$          0 1,821 -$                  35,873.70$          35,873.70$          -$                        
c 1 1/2" -'9.5 MM Superpave .3>3  64-22 1821 SY 6.42$                   11,690.82$          0 1,821 -$                  11,690.82$          11,690.82$          -$                        
d Sweep And Tack 1821 SY 0.43$                   783.03$               0 1,821 -$                  783.03$               783.03$               -$                        

3 Type C Pavement
a 2A Modified Subbase - 3" 13102 SY 3.27$                   42,843.54$          0 13,102 -$                  42,843.54$          42,843.54$          -$                        
b 5 "-'25 MM Superpave .3>3  64-24 13102 SY 19.70$                 258,109.40$       0 13,102 -$                  258,109.40$        258,109.40$        -$                        
c 1 1/2" -'9.5 MM Superpave .3>3  64-22 13102 SY 6.42$                   84,114.84$          0 13,102 -$                  84,114.84$          84,114.84$          -$                        
d Sweep And Tack 13102 SY 0.43$                   5,633.86$            0 13,102 -$                  5,633.86$            5,633.86$            -$                        
e Asphalt Trail
f Geo-Textile Fabric 2400 SY 1.12$                   2,688.00$            0 2,400 -$                  2,688.00$            2,688.00$            -$                        
g 2A Modified Sub base - 6" 2400 SY 7.12$                   17,088.00$          0 2,400 -$                  17,088.00$          17,088.00$          -$                        
h ID-2 Wearing 2" 2110 SY 11.51$                 24,286.10$          0 2,110 -$                  24,286.10$          24,286.10$          -$                        

614,276.40$       -$                  614,276.40$        614,276.40$        -$                        

I
1 Pavement Markings/Signs 1 LS $16,209.67 16,209.67$          0.00 1 -$                  16,209.67$          16,209.67$          -$                        

16,209.67$          -$                  16,209.67$          16,209.67$          -$                        

J
1 Landscaping 1 LS 147,994.29$       147,994.29$       0.00 1 -$                  147,994.29$        147,994.29$        -$                        

147,994.29$       -$                  147,994.29$        147,994.29$        -$                        

K
1 Utility Trenching 1200 LF 18.57$                 22,284.00$          0 1,200 -$                  22,284.00$          22,284.00$          -$                        

22,284.00$          -$                  22,284.00$          22,284.00$          -$                        

L
1 Site Lights 1 LS 344,185.33$       344,185.33$       0 1 -$                  344,185.33$        344,185.33$        -$                        

344,185.33$       -$                  344,185.33$        344,185.33$        -$                        

M
1 Street Sweeping - Our Work Only 2 DAYS 1,227.62$            2,455.24$            0 2 -$                  2,455.24$            2,455.24$            -$                        
2 Temp. Seeding R-O-W 30000 SF 0.04$                   1,200.00$            0 30,000 -$                  1,200.00$            1,200.00$            -$                        

Jefferson Street Improvements

Pavement Markings/Signs

Subtotal - Pavement Markings/Signs

Subtotal - Landscaping

Subtotal - Site Lights

Utility Trenching

Subtotal - Utility Trenching

Site Lights

Stoning/Paving

Landscaping

Subtotal - Concrete Work

Subtotal - Stoning/Paving

14-0105LP
PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002



Page 5 of 6

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE  BALANCE 

Developer: Oaks Properties Inc., Audubon Land Development  

Escrow Release No. 6Audubon Square V

DESCRIPTION

Opinion of Probable Cost
December 13, 2019

3 Clearing / Grubbing 1 LS 7,071.74$            7,071.74$            0 1 -$                  7,071.74$            7,071.74$            -$                        
4 Strip Topsoil & Stockpile Onsite 313 CY 2.42$                   757.46$               0 313 -$                  757.46$               757.46$               -$                        
5 Cut, Fill & Compact 1398 CY 3.26$                   4,557.48$            0 1,398 -$                  4,557.48$            4,557.48$            -$                        
6 Rough Grade Site 30000 SF 0.04$                   1,200.00$            0.0 30,000 -$                  1,200.00$            1,200.00$            -$                        
7 Respread Topsoil 277 CY 12.88$                 3,567.76$            0 277 -$                  3,567.76$            3,567.76$            -$                        
8 Fine Grade for Paving 1290 SY 1.08$                   1,393.20$            0 1,290 -$                  1,393.20$            1,393.20$            -$                        
9 Traffic Control 1 LS 5,766.35$            5,766.35$            0 1 -$                  5,766.35$            5,766.35$            -$                        

10 Tie Into Existing Storm 1 EA 1,102.80$            1,102.80$            0 1 -$                  1,102.80$            1,102.80$            -$                        
11 RCP 12" CL 4 0-Ring/Super Seal 166 LF 46.05$                 7,644.30$            0 166 -$                  7,644.30$            7,644.30$            -$                        
12 RCP 15" CL 40 0-Ring/Super Seal 752 LF 45.47$                 34,193.44$          0 752 -$                  34,193.44$          34,193.44$          -$                        
13 Stone Envelope 489 TN 17.27$                 8,445.03$            0 489 -$                  8,445.03$            8,445.03$            -$                        
14 Stone Backfill 612 TN 18.27$                 11,181.24$          0 612 -$                  11,181.24$          11,181.24$          -$                        
15 Trench Spoils to Onsite Fills. 304 CY 8.42$                   2,559.68$            0 304 -$                  2,559.68$            2,559.68$            -$                        
16 Outlet Structures 1 EA 7,266.62$            7,266.62$            0 1 -$                  7,266.62$            7,266.62$            -$                        
17 Precast Inlets 6 EA 2,116.38$            12,698.28$          0 6 -$                  12,698.28$          12,698.28$          -$                        
18 Inlet Grade Adjustments 7 EA 326.62$               2,286.34$            0 7 -$                  2,286.34$            2,286.34$            -$                        
19 Pour Inlet Channels 7 EA 211.24$               1,478.68$            0 7 -$                  1,478.68$            1,478.68$            -$                        
20 Saw Cutting 910 LF 3.55$                   3,230.50$            0 910 -$                  3,230.50$            3,230.50$            -$                        
21 Remove & Replace 18" Curb 40 LF 57.61$                 2,304.40$            0 40 -$                  2,304.40$            2,304.40$            -$                        
22 Temporay Cold Patch 355 SY 54.18$                 19,233.90$          0 355 -$                  19,233.90$          19,233.90$          -$                        
23 Street Repair 531 SY 59.84$                 31,775.04$          0 531 -$                  31,775.04$          31,775.04$          -$                        
24 Tunnel Under Utilites 2 EA 1,152.51$            2,305.02$            0 2 -$                  2,305.02$            2,305.02$            -$                        
25 Curb Excavation/Backfill 674 LF 3.86$                   2,601.64$            0 674 -$                  2,601.64$            2,601.64$            -$                        
26 Concrete Curb - 18" 674 LF 14.00$                 9,436.00$            0 674 -$                  9,436.00$            9,436.00$            -$                        
27 Curb Seal 674 LF 0.88$                   593.12$               0 674 -$                  593.12$               593.12$               -$                        
28 Patch Pave Curb 40 LF 24.87$                 994.80$               0 40 -$                  994.80$               994.80$               -$                        
29 2A Modfied Subbase - 6" 1290 SY 6.31$                   8,139.90$            0 1,290 -$                  8,139.90$            8,139.90$            -$                        
30 4" - 25 MM Superpave .3>3 64-22 1290 SY 15.48$                 19,969.20$          0 1,290 -$                  19,969.20$          19,969.20$          -$                        
31 2" - 19" MM Superpave .3>3 64-22 1290 SY 7.88$                   10,165.20$          0 1,290 -$                  10,165.20$          10,165.20$          -$                        
32 1 1/2" - 9.5 MM Superpave .3>3 64-22 1290 SY 6.42$                   8,281.80$            0 1,290 -$                  8,281.80$            8,281.80$            -$                        
33 Pavement Patching 17 SY 92.32$                 1,569.44$            0 17 -$                  1,569.44$            1,569.44$            -$                        
34 Milling Bituminous - 1 1/2" 1750 SY 3.99$                   6,982.50$            0 1,750 -$                  6,982.50$            6,982.50$            -$                        
35 1 1/2" - 9.5 MM Overlay 1750 SY 6.42$                   11,235.00$          0 1,750 -$                  11,235.00$          11,235.00$          -$                        
36 Saw Cutting 585 LF 3.55$                   2,076.75$            0 585 -$                  2,076.75$            2,076.75$            -$                        
37 Sweep & Tack 3040 SY 0.43$                   1,307.20$            0 3,040 -$                  1,307.20$            1,307.20$            -$                        
38 Survey 1 LS 11,411.60$          11,411.60$          0.00 1.00 -$                  11,411.60$          11,411.60$          -$                        
39 Mobilization & Supervision 1 LS 15,814.15$          15,814.15$          0.00 1.00 -$                  15,814.15$          15,814.15$          -$                        

286,252.80$       -$                  286,252.80$        286,252.80$        -$                        

N
1 Strip Topsoil & Stockpile Onsite 650 CY 2.42$                   1,573.00$            0 650 -$                  1,573.00$            1,573.00$            -$                        
2 Cut, Fill & Compact 855 CY 3.26$                   2,787.30$            0 855 -$                  2,787.30$            2,787.30$            -$                        
3 Underground Retention Basin-A 1 LS 66,676.27$          66,676.27$          0 1 -$                  66,676.27$          66,676.27$          -$                        
4 Rough Grade 12259 SF 0.04$                   490.36$               0 12,259 -$                  490.36$               490.36$               -$                        

Subtotal - Jefferson Street Improvements

Building #5

14-0105LP
PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002



Page 6 of 6

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE  BALANCE 

Developer: Oaks Properties Inc., Audubon Land Development  

Escrow Release No. 6Audubon Square V

DESCRIPTION

Opinion of Probable Cost
December 13, 2019

5 Storm Sewer 1 LS 22,737.96$          22,737.96$          0 1 -$                  22,737.96$          22,737.96$          -$                        
6 Respread Topsoil 92 CY 12.88$                 1,184.96$            0 92 -$                  1,184.96$            1,184.96$            -$                        
7 Fine Grade for Paving 1640 SY 1.08$                   1,771.20$            0 1,640 -$                  1,771.20$            1,771.20$            -$                        
8 Curb Excavation/Backfill 836 LF 3.86$                   3,226.96$            0 836 -$                  3,226.96$            3,226.96$            -$                        
9 Concrete Curb - 18" 836 LF 14.00$                 11,704.00$          0 836 -$                  11,704.00$          11,704.00$          -$                        

10 Sidewalk Excavation 3046 SF 1.62$                   4,934.52$            0 3,046 -$                  4,934.52$            4,934.52$            -$                        
11 Sidewalk, 4" with Stone 3046 SF 5.97$                   18,184.62$          0 3,046 -$                  18,184.62$          18,184.62$          -$                        
12 Handicap Ramps 2 EA 907.38$               1,814.76$            0 2 -$                  1,814.76$            1,814.76$            -$                        
13 Truncated Domes 32 SF 26.38$                 844.16$               0 32 -$                  844.16$               844.16$               -$                        
14 2A Modified Stone Subbase - 3" 1640 SY 3.27$                   5,362.80$            0 1,640 -$                  5,362.80$            5,362.80$            -$                        
15 5" 25 MM Superpave .3>3 64-22 1640 SY 19.70$                 32,308.00$          0 1,640 -$                  32,308.00$          32,308.00$          -$                        
16 1 1/2" - 9.5 MM Superpave .3>3 64-22 1640 SY 6.42$                   10,528.80$          0 1,640 -$                  10,528.80$          10,528.80$          -$                        
17 Curb Seal 836 LF 0.89$                   744.04$               0 836 -$                  744.04$               744.04$               -$                        
18 Saw Cutting 70 LF 3.55$                   248.50$               0 70 -$                  248.50$               248.50$               -$                        
19 Sweep & Tack 1640 SY 0.43$                   705.20$               0 1,640 -$                  705.20$               705.20$               -$                        
20 Pavement Markings & Signs 1 LS 4,322.58$            4,322.58$            0 1 -$                  4,322.58$            4,322.58$            -$                        
21 Landscaping 1 LS 14,048.38$          14,048.38$          0 1 -$                  14,048.38$          14,048.38$          -$                        
22 Site Lights 1 LS 54,032.24$          54,032.24$          0.00 1.0 -$                  54,032.24$          54,032.24$          -$                        
23 Survey 1 LS 11,411.60$          11,411.60$          0.00 1.0 -$                  11,411.60$          11,411.60$          -$                        
24 Mobilization & Supervision 1 LS 9,488.49$            9,488.49$            0.00 1.0 -$                  9,488.49$            9,488.49$            -$                        

281,130.70$       -$                  281,130.70$        281,130.70$        -$                        

O
1 Survey 1 LS 45,646.43$          45,646.43$          0.00 1.00 -$                  45,646.43$          45,646.43$          -$                        
2 Asbuilts-Our Work Only 1 LS 4,564.64$            4,564.64$            1.00 1.00 4,564.64$        -$                      4,564.64$            -$                        

50,211.07$          4,564.64$        45,646.43$          50,211.07$          -$                        

P
1 Supervision/Mobilization 1 LS 69,582.28$          69,582.28$          0.00 1 -$                  69,582.28$          69,582.28$          -$                        

69,582.28$          -$                  69,582.28$          69,582.28$          -$                        

3,338,021.19$    4,564.64$        3,333,456.55$    3,338,021.19$    -$                        
66,760.00$          -$                  66,760.00$          66,760.00$          -$                        

333,802.12$       26,416.05$      307,386.07$        333,802.12$        -$                        

3,738,583.31$    30,980.69$      3,707,602.62$    3,738,583.31$    -$                        

LEGAL, CONSTRUCTION, OBSERVATION & TESTING

Subtotal - Building #5

Project Survey

Subtotal - Project Survey

GRAND TOTAL

NET CONSTRUCTION COSTS

10% PER MPC

Supervision/Mobilization

Subtotal - Supervision/Mobilization

14-0105LP
PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002



7/11/2022





Page 1 of 3

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE BALANCE

A
1 1 LS 25,000.00$    25,000.00$          0.00 1.00 -$                  25,000.00$      25,000.00$      -$                  
2 1 LS 7,500.00$      7,500.00$            0 0 -$                  -$                  -$                  7,500.00$        

32,500.00$          -$                  25,000.00$      25,000.00$      7,500.00$        

B
1 1,080 LF 2.25$              2,430.00$            0 1,080 -$                  2,430.00$        2,430.00$        -$                  
2 283 LF 4.50$              1,273.50$            0 283 -$                  1,273.50$        1,273.50$        -$                  
3 191 LF 9.50$              1,814.50$            0 191 -$                  1,814.50$        1,814.50$        -$                  
4 3,002 SF 1.50$              4,503.00$            0 3,002 -$                  4,503.00$        4,503.00$        -$                  
5 1 EA 850.00$         850.00$                0 1 -$                  850.00$            850.00$            -$                  
6 292 SY 4.50$              1,314.00$            0 292 -$                  1,314.00$        1,314.00$        -$                  

12,185.00$          -$                  12,185.00$      12,185.00$      -$                  

C
1

a Roadways - Strip Topsoil 3,283 CU 2.75$              9,028.25$            0 3,283 -$                  9,028.25$        9,028.25$        -$                  
b Roadways - Cut Total 6,873 CY 2.50$              17,182.50$          0 6,873 -$                  17,182.50$      17,182.50$      -$                  
c Roadways - Fill Required 1,417 CY 2.00$              2,834.00$            0 1,417 -$                  2,834.00$        2,834.00$        -$                  
d Roadways - Return Topsoil 702 CY 4.50$              3,159.00$            0 702 -$                  3,159.00$        3,159.00$        -$                  

6 0
a Proctor Testing 2 EA 350.00$         700.00$                0 2 -$                  700.00$            700.00$            -$                  
b Test Building Pads - 3 per day ($650/day) 18 DAY 650.00$         11,700.00$          0.00 18.00 -$                  11,700.00$      11,700.00$      -$                  
c Test Berms on Basins 1 EA 3,000.00$      3,000.00$            0 1 -$                  3,000.00$        3,000.00$        -$                  

47,603.75$          -$                  47,603.75$      47,603.75$      -$                  

D
1 1,628 LF 35.00$           56,980.00$          0 1,628 -$                  56,980.00$      56,980.00$      -$                  
2 1,375 LF 32.00$           44,000.00$          0 1,375 -$                  44,000.00$      44,000.00$      -$                  
3 8 EA 2,850.00$      22,800.00$          0 8 -$                  22,800.00$      22,800.00$      -$                  
4 2 EA 3,500.00$      7,000.00$            0 2 -$                  7,000.00$        7,000.00$        -$                  
5 51 EA 250.00$         12,750.00$          0 51 -$                  12,750.00$      12,750.00$      -$                  
6 39 EA 350.00$         13,650.00$          0 39 -$                  13,650.00$      13,650.00$      -$                  

157,180.00$        -$                  157,180.00$    157,180.00$    -$                  

E
1 795 LF 33.50$           26,632.50$          0 795 -$                  26,632.50$      26,632.50$      -$                  
2 145 LF 39.25$           5,691.25$            0 145 -$                  5,691.25$        5,691.25$        -$                  
3 219 LF 55.50$           12,154.50$          0 219 -$                  12,154.50$      12,154.50$      -$                  
4 69 LF 55.00$           3,795.00$            0 69 -$                  3,795.00$        3,795.00$        -$                  
5 44 LF 75.00$           3,300.00$            0 44 -$                  3,300.00$        3,300.00$        -$                  
6 6 EA 2,350.00$      14,100.00$          0 6 -$                  14,100.00$      14,100.00$      -$                  

Revsied Escrow Release No. 6
July 8, 2022

24" HDPE
30" HDPE
18" RCP O-Ring
24" RCP O-Ring
4 Ft. Type M Inlet

Construction Entrance
Concrete Washout
Spillway SC 250 Matting

Earthwork Road

Compaction Testing

Courts at Brynwood - Phase 2
Lower Providence Township

DESCRIPTION

Survey

Subtotal - Survey

Opinion of Probable Cost - May 8, 2019

Construction Layout
As Built Development

Erosion Control

Sanitary Sewer

18" Silt Fence
12" Filter Sock
24" Filter Sock

Subtotal - Sanitary Sewer

Storm Sewer 

Subtotal - Erosion Control

Earthwork

Subtotal - Earthwork

8" PVC Main
6" PVC Lateral - 10' past back of sidewalk
4 Ft. Dia Manholes
Drop Manhole - Inside
Lateral Connection
Cleanout

18" HDPE

14-0208LP

PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002



Page 2 of 3

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE BALANCE

Revsied Escrow Release No. 6
July 8, 2022

Courts at Brynwood - Phase 2
Lower Providence Township

DESCRIPTION

Opinion of Probable Cost - May 8, 2019

7 2 EA 3,200.00$      6,400.00$            0 2 -$                  6,400.00$        6,400.00$        -$                  
8 4 EA 2,500.00$      10,000.00$          0 4 -$                  10,000.00$      10,000.00$      -$                  
9 1 EA 1,650.00$      1,650.00$            0 1 -$                  1,650.00$        1,650.00$        -$                  

10 1 EA 1,750.00$      1,750.00$            0 1 -$                  1,750.00$        1,750.00$        -$                  
11 1 EA 2,500.00$      2,500.00$            0 1 -$                  2,500.00$        2,500.00$        -$                  
12 1 EA 3,500.00$      3,500.00$            0 1 -$                  3,500.00$        3,500.00$        -$                  
13 2 EA 650.00$         1,300.00$            0 2 -$                  1,300.00$        1,300.00$        -$                  
14 1 EA 1,850.00$      1,850.00$            0 1 -$                  1,850.00$        1,850.00$        -$                  
15 18 TN 45.00$           810.00$                0 18 -$                  810.00$            810.00$            -$                  

95,433.25$          -$                  95,433.25$      95,433.25$      -$                  

F
1 15,901 SF 5.00$              79,505.00$          0 15,901 -$                  79,505.00$      79,505.00$      -$                  
2 6,620 SF 5.00$              33,100.00$          0 6,620 -$                  33,100.00$      33,100.00$      -$                  
3 2,047 SF 7.00$              14,329.00$          0 2,047 -$                  14,329.00$      14,329.00$      -$                  
4 2,308 SF 5.00$              11,540.00$          0 2,308 -$                  11,540.00$      11,540.00$      -$                  
5 3,250 SF 5.00$              16,250.00$          0 3,250 -$                  16,250.00$      16,250.00$      -$                  
6 14,197 SF 0.25$              3,549.25$            0 14,197 -$                  3,549.25$        3,549.25$        -$                  
7 62,576 SF 0.15$              9,386.40$            0 62,576 -$                  9,386.40$        9,386.40$        -$                  
8 2,276 SF 0.15$              341.40$                0 2,276 -$                  341.40$            341.40$            -$                  
9 20 EA 275.00$         5,500.00$            20 20 5,500.00$        -$                  5,500.00$        -$                  

10 127 EA 65.00$           8,255.00$            127 127 8,255.00$        -$                  8,255.00$        -$                  
11 15 EA 375.00$         5,625.00$            15 15 5,625.00$        -$                  5,625.00$        -$                  

187,381.05$        19,380.00$      168,001.05$    187,381.05$    -$                  

G
1

a Belgian Block Curb 3,391 LF 15.00$           50,865.00$          0 3,391 -$                  50,865.00$      50,865.00$      -$                  
b Curb Cut Rip-Rap Locations 15 EA 250.00$         3,750.00$            0 15 -$                  3,750.00$        3,750.00$        -$                  

2 3,642 SF 4.50$              16,389.00$          120 3,642 540.00$            15,849.00$      16,389.00$      -$                  
3 8,098 SF 5.85$              47,373.30$          720 8,098 4,212.00$        43,161.30$      47,373.30$      -$                  

118,377.30$        4,752.00$        113,625.30$    118,377.30$    -$                  

H
1

a Int Road - Fine Grade 6,246 SY 1.00$              6,246.00$            0 6,246 -$                  6,246.00$        6,246.00$        -$                  
b Int Road - 3" Modified Stone Base 6,246 SY 6.00$              37,476.00$          0 6,246 -$                  37,476.00$      37,476.00$      -$                  
c Int Road - 5" Bituminous Conc. Base Course 6,246 SY 18.00$           112,428.00$        0 6,246 -$                  112,428.00$    112,428.00$    -$                  

2
a Int Road - Clean and Tack 6,246 SY 0.85$              5,309.10$            0 0 -$                  -$                  -$                  5,309.10$        
b Int Road - 1.5 " Wearing 6,246 SY 7.45$              46,532.70$          0 0 -$                  -$                  -$                  46,532.70$      

Raingarden #1 Planting Soil / Stone
Raingarden #2 Planting Soil
Raingarden #3 Planting Soil

Double Type M Inlet
Storm Manhole
18" DW Endwall
24" DW Endwall
30" DW Endwall

Basin #3 - Planting Soil

Outlet Structure
Anti-Seep Collars
Stilling Basin
Rip Rap at Endwalls

Basin #2 - Planting Soil

Subtotal - BMP Construction

Site Concrete

Center Islands:  Ernst Mix 180
RG-Evergreen Shrubs

Amended Soils
Open Space:  Ernst Mix 154

Interior Paving

Interior Wearing Course

Subtotal - Site Concrete

Paving

Curbing

Sidewalk - Walks - 4" Th on 4" 2A Stone
Drive Aprons - Apron - " Th on 4" 2B Stone

RG-Deciduous Shrubs
RG-Shade Trees

Subtotal - Storm Sewer 

BMP Construction

14-0208LP

PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002



Page 3 of 3

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE BALANCE

Revsied Escrow Release No. 6
July 8, 2022

Courts at Brynwood - Phase 2
Lower Providence Township

DESCRIPTION

Opinion of Probable Cost - May 8, 2019

3
a Traffic Signs 19 EA 250.00$         4,750.00$            0 0 -$                  -$                  -$                  4,750.00$        
b Striping 1 LS 5,000.00$      5,000.00$            0 0 -$                  -$                  -$                  5,000.00$        

217,741.80$        -$                  156,150.00$    156,150.00$    61,591.80$      

I
1 7 EA 4,750.00$      33,250.00$          0 7 -$                  33,250.00$      33,250.00$      -$                  

33,250.00$          -$                  33,250.00$      33,250.00$      -$                  

J
1 62 EA 375.00$         23,250.00$          62 62 23,250.00$      -$                  23,250.00$      -$                  
2 20 EA 350.00$         7,000.00$            20 20 7,000.00$        -$                  7,000.00$        -$                  
3 89 EA 250.00$         22,250.00$          89 89 22,250.00$      -$                  22,250.00$      -$                  
4 59 EA 65.00$           3,835.00$            59 59 3,835.00$        -$                  3,835.00$        -$                  
5 103 EA 65.00$           6,695.00$            103 103 6,695.00$        -$                  6,695.00$        -$                  
6 12 EA 65.00$           780.00$                12 12 780.00$            -$                  780.00$            -$                  

63,810.00$          63,810.00$      -$                  63,810.00$      -$                  

K
1 1 LS 2,500.00$      2,500.00$            0 1 -$                  2,500.00$        2,500.00$        -$                  

2,500.00$            -$                  2,500.00$        2,500.00$        -$                  

967,962.15$        87,942.00$      810,928.35$    898,870.35$    69,091.80$      

Street Lights

Shade Trees
Ornamental Trees
Evergreen Trees
Evergreen Shrubs
Deciduous Shrubs
Ground Cover - Junipers

Subtotal - Utilities 

Landscaping

Subtotal - Paving

GRAND TOTAL

Subtotal - Landscaping

Misc.-Site Improvements

Subtotal - Misc.-Site Improvements
Mailbox Area

Utilities 

Interior Striping & Signs

14-0208LP

PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002





H I B B E L N   E N G I N E E R I N G   C O M P A N Y,   L. L. C.
C O N S U L T I N G   E N G I N E E R S

H I B B E L N   E N G I N E E R I N G
C O M P A N Y,   L. L. C.

C O N S U L T I N G   E N G I N E E R S

→

→ 







LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 

 
 

TO: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager   

 

FROM: Joseph R. Chillano, Public Works Director  

 

DATE: 7/7/2022   

 

RE: Authorization for truck purchases 2022   
                 

 

 

 I am seeking authorization to replace two aging trucks in our fleet. The first vehicle is the bucket 

truck. Back in 2009 we repurposed a 1982 body and bucket and put them on a 2000 cab and chassis, 

vehicle #46. This has served us well, but it’s functional life will come to an end in August as the 

inspection runs out and will not pass again. The new bucket truck will be utilized for tree trimming, 

building maintenance, Parks work and a variety of emergency work. With a Township our size and the 

infrastructure we own, a reliable bucket truck is essential to serve our community. The budget cost for a 

new 2023 Ford F450 Bucket Truck is $121,600.00. 

 The second truck we need to replace in our fleet is a 1993 Ford dump truck, vehicle #34. While 

the truck has served the Township well, it is 29 years old. Additionally, between the years 2002 and 2012 

a total of 10 years we did not replace any of our larger dump trucks. The new truck would be an instant 

upgrade, a front-line piece. The budget cost for a new 2024 International Dump Truck including the 

plow, spreader and anti-icing unit is $240,380.00. 

 The attachment I have provided is a snapshot of our larger capital equipment. Our replacement 

policy has been to replace our smaller trucks/dump trucks on a 15 year cycle and the larger dump trucks 

on a 20 year cycle.  

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

Joseph R. Chillano    

    



Lower Providence Township
2022 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PUBLIC WORKS PARKS&REC.

Veh. # Year Make Unit# Model

 Purchase 

Price 

 Estimated 

Replace 

Cost 2022 

 Yrs to be 

Retained

 Year to be 

Replaced

Remain Yrs 

of Service Age (Yrs) 

New Repl. 

Date

2022

34 1993 Ford 34 L800 Dump Truck 62,579$       220,000$     20 2013 (9) 29 2022 ARF

32 1995 GMC 32 Top Kick Dump Truck 67,155$       220,000$     20 2015 (7) 27 2023

41 1996 Ford 41 F800 Dump Truck 64,750$       220,000$     20 2016 (6) 26 2026

42 1997 Ford 42 Street Sweeper  $    150,000 210,000$     20 2017 (5) 25 2029

36 2000 Case 36 621 Rubber Tire  Loader 100,000$     200,000$     20 2020 (2) 22 2024

46 2000 Ford 46 F350 - Bucket Truck 35,000$       120,000$     15 2015 (7) 22 2022 ARF

45 2000 Ford 45 F350 35,000$       130,000$     15 2015 (7) 22 2023

48 2001 International 48 Dump Truck 74,500$       220,000$     20 2021 (1) 21 2026

38 2002 GMC 38 Dump Truck 74,500$       220,000$     20 2022 0 20 2028

52 2005 Ford 52 F550 Dump Truck  $      90,000 130,000$     15 2020 (2) 17 2025

50 2005 Ford 50 F550 Dump Truck  $      90,000 130,000$     15 2020 (2) 17 2025

44 2005 Ford 44 F550 Dump Truck 90,000$       130,000$     15 2020 (2) 17 2021

37 2008 Ford 37 F550 Dump Truck  $      59,796 130,000$     15 2023 1 14 2027

61 2012 International 61 7400 Dump Truck 150,000$     220,000$     20 2032 10 10 2032

33 2014 International 33 7400 Dump Truck 165,000$     220,000$     20 2034 12 8 2034

43 2016 International 43 7400 Dump Truck 165,000$     220,000$     20 2036 14 6 2036

39 2016 Ford 39 F550 Dump Truck  $    106,000 130,000$     15 2031 9 6 2031

62 2018 International Truck 62 7400  Dump Truck 170,000$     198,900$     20 2038 16 4 2038

53 2019 FordF350 53 Pickup Truck 32,946$       33,000$       15 2034 12 3 2034

63 2021 International 63 7400 Dump Truck 185,000$     220,000$     20 2041 19 1 2041

30 2012 Ford 30 F-150 23,434$       45,000$       15 2027 5 10 2031

47 1999 Case 47 580 Backhoe Super L 56,000$       110,000$     20 2019 (3) 23 2033

49 2017 Case 49 580SN Backhoe 111,000$     129,870$     20 2037 15 5 2037

40 2008 New Holland 40 Tractor  $      48,916 90,000$       20 2028 6 14 2028

2004 48 Brine Applicator - 2  $      14,941 20,000$       15 2019 (3) 18 2023

2003 38 Brine Applicator - 1  $      43,067 20,000$       15 2018 (4) 19 2022 ARF

Funding Estimate

PUBLIC WORKS Current Year



 
 
 
 
   June 6, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Gary Neights 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
Mr. E.J. Mentry 
Township Manager 
Lower Providence Township  
100 Parklane Drive 
Eagleville, Pennsylvania  19403 
 
Dear Mr. Neights and Mr. Mentry: 
 
 We are please to confirm our understanding of the nature and limitations of the services we are to 
provide for Lower Providence Township.  
 
 We will apply the agreed-upon procedures which Lower Providence Township has specified in the 
attached schedule, with respect to the tax collection records of the tax collector for Lower Providence 
Township for the year ended December 31, 2021.  Our engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures will 
be conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants.  The sufficiency of the procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties 
specified in the report.  Consequently, we make no representations regarding the sufficiency of the 
procedures described in the attached schedule either for the purpose for which this report has been 
requested or for any other purpose.  If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the procedures, we will 
describe any restrictions on the performance of the procedures in our report, or will not issue a report as a 
result of this engagement. 
 
 Because the agreed-upon procedures listed in the attached schedule do not constitute an 
examination, we will not express an opinion on the tax collection records of the tax collector for Lower 
Providence Township for the year ended December 31, 2021.  In addition, we have no obligation to 
perform any procedures beyond those listed in the attached schedule.  
 
 We will submit a report listing the procedures performed and our findings.  This report is intended 
solely for the use of Lower Providence Township, and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties.  Our report will contain a paragraph indicating that had we performed additional 
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.  
 
 You are responsible for assuming all management responsibilities and for overseeing the non-attest 
services we provide by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who possesses 
suitable skill, knowledge and/or experience.  In addition, you are responsible for evaluating the adequacy 
and results of the services performed and accepting responsibility for the results of such services. 
 
 At the conclusion of our engagement, we will require a representation letter from management that, 
among other things, will confirm management’s responsibility for the presentation of the schedule of real 
estate taxes billed, collected and remitted and the schedule of real estate taxes remitted by month in 
accordance with the cash basis of accounting. 
 
 
 

 



Mr. Gary Neights 
Mr. E.J. Mentry 
June 6, 2022 
Page Two 
 
 
 We estimate that our fees for these services will not exceed $3,000.  The fee estimate is based on 
anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not 
be encountered during the engagement.  If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with 
you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.  Our invoices for these fees will 
be rendered as work progresses and are payable on presentation. 
 
 We appreciate the opportunity to assist you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement.  If you have any questions, please let us know.  If you agree with the 
terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.  If 
the need for additional procedures arises, our agreement with you will need to be revised.  It is customary 
for us to enumerate these revisions in an addendum to this letter.  If additional specified parties of the 
report are added, we will require that they acknowledge in writing their responsibility for the sufficiency of 
procedures. 
 
    Very truly yours, 
 
    BBD, LLP 
 

                                                                                           
      
    Carl E. Hogan, Partner 
 
 
 This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Lower Providence Township. 
 
 
 
                                        
Date   Gary Neights 
   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
 
___________________ ______________________________________ 
Date   E.J. Mentry 
   Township Manager 
 



PROCEDURES 
 
 
1. We will select 40 real estate tax payments received during the year ended December 31, 2021.  We 

will recalculate the current year tax based on the 2021 millage rate and the assessed value from the 
2021 tax duplicate prepared by the Montgomery County Assessments Office. 

 
 
2. We will trace the 40 selected real estate tax deposits to the tax collector’s deposit slips and bank 

statements noting the timeliness of the deposit. 
 
 
3. We will trace the 40 selected real estate tax deposits to the applicable remittance to the Township 

from the tax collector noting the time elapsed from the date the taxpayer made the payment to the 
date the tax was deposited with Lower Providence Township.  

 
 
4. We will review amounts liened with the Montgomery County Tax Claim Bureau and confirm that 

remittances selected are not included as unpaid. 
 
 
5. We will compare the schedule of real estate taxes billed, collected and remitted and schedule of real 

estate taxes by month for the year ended December 31, 2021 to reports prepared by the tax collector. 
 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 

RESOLUTION #2022-22 

 

WHEREAS, Montgomery County has established the County Transportation Program as a 

competitive funding program to assist municipalities with improving transportation infrastructure 

throughout the county; and 

  

WHEREAS, the County is accepting grant applications to fund transportation projects that meet the 

eligibility requirements for County Fee for Local Use funds, including construction and repair of 

public roads and bridges, acquisition and maintenance of traffic signs and signals, lane and crosswalk 

painting and marking, and curb ramps; and  

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township, Montgomery 

County, hereby request a County Transportation Program Grant of $72,844.00 from the County of 

Montgomery to be used for construction and installation of safety improvements at the intersection of 

Germantown Pike and Evansburg Road in Lower Providence Township, Montgomery County, PA. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Applicant does hereby designate E.J. Mentry, Township 

Manager as the official to execute all documents and agreements between Lower Providence 

Township and the County of Montgomery Authority to facilitate and assist in obtaining the requested 

grant. 

 

I, _________________, duly qualified Secretary of the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence 

Township, Montgomery County Pennsylvania, hereby certify that the forgoing is a true and correct 

copy of a Resolution duly adopted by a majority vote of the Board of supervisors at a regular meeting 

held the 21st  day of July and said resolution has been recorded in the Minutes of the Board of 

supervisors and remains in effect as of this date. 

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I affix by hand and attach the seal of the Township of Lower Providence 

this 21st day of July 2022. 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BY:__________________________ 

Gary Neights, Chair 

Attest:_________________________  

E.J. Mentry, Secretary 



McMahon Associates, Inc.     
Engineer's Conceptual Opinion of Cost

7/11/2022 
Prepared By: DJK
Checked By: AKK

Municipality: Lower Providence Township, Montgomery County, PA
Project Name: Germantown Pike and Evansuburg Road Safety Improvements
Project Number: 821376.31

Plan Title: Traffic Signal Permit and Construction Plans
Roadway(s): Germantown Pike and Evansburg Road
Project Description: Installation of traffic signal saftey improvements

at Germantown Piuke and Evansburg Road
Unit Costs Last Revised: 3/15/2022
Source: Municipal Bid Price History and Similar Project Experience

Item 
No. Cost

1 Total Construction Cost $74,555.00

2 Contingency $7,500.00

3 Construction Inspection $9,000.00

4 Total Project Cost $91,055.00

5 Montco CTP Grant Request (80%) $72,844.00

6 Municipal Match (20%) $18,211.00

General Notes:

Disclaimer:  McMahon Associates, Inc. has provided this opinion of cost as requested by the client.  Please note that opinions of cost 
are subject to change based on plan/design revisions, fluctuatins in unit costs, field conditions, and differences in locale.  Opinions 
of cost are provided for use in budgeting, but in no way intended to be construed as a final cost for the project.  Final costs are 
contingent only on actual bids from contractors.  McMahon Associates, Inc. will not be held responsible for differences between this 
opinion of cost and contractor bid costs.

Description



HENDERSON ROAD (SR 3029)
PEDESTRIAN CROSSING IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COSTS

as of June 2, 2022

Item No. Description Comment Unit Quantity Unit Cost Cost

Roadway Items

0935-0001 POST MOUNTED SIGNS, TYPE F SF 5 $35.00 $175.00

0936-0200 STRUCTURE MOUNTED FLAT SHEET ALUMINUM SIGNS SF 8 $45.00 $360.00

0951- 4022 PEDESTRIAN STUB POLE, TYPE B EACH 2 $1,675.00 $3,350.00

0952-3002 CONTROLLER MODIFICATION EACH 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

0954-0012 2 INCH CONDUIT LF 25 $15.00 $375.00

0954-0150 TRENCH AND BACKFILL, TYPE I LF 15 $25.00 $370.00

0954-0202 SIGNAL CABLE, 14 AWG, 5 CONDUCTOR LF 945 $5.00 $4,725.00

0954-0203 SIGNAL CABLE, 14 AWG, 7 CONDUCTOR LF 100 $6.00 $600.00

0955-3210 VEHICULAR SIGNAL HEAD, FIVE 12" SECTIONS EACH 1 $1,250.00 $1,250.00

0955-3722 LED COUNTDOWN PEDESTRIAN SIGNAL HEAD, TYPE A EACH 6 $600.00 $3,600.00

0955-5000 BACKPLATE RETROFIT EACH 7 $350.00 $2,450.00

0956-0610 RADAR DETECTION SYSTEM EACH 1 $19,500.00 $19,500.00

0956-0712 OMNI-VIEW VIDEO DETECTION SYSTEM EACH 1 $28,500.00 $28,500.00

Construction Subtotal $67,755.00

0608-0001 Moblization 5% LS 1 $3,400.00 $3,400.00

0901-0001 Maintenance and Protection of Traffic During Construction 5% LS 1 $3,400.00 $3,400.00

Total Roadway Construction Cost $74,555.00

Contingency 10% 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00

Inspection 8% LS 1 $9,000.00 $9,000.00

Total Estimated Project Cost $91,055.00


	Agenda BOS 2022-07-21
	1a Minutes BOS 2022-06-16
	1a Minutes BOS Strategic Planning Workshop
	1a Minutes Environmental Advisory Council 2022-05-16
	1a Minutes Parks and Recreation 2022-04-19
	1a Minutes Sewer Authority 2022-05-09
	1b Commendations of Life Saving
	Auge LIFE SAVING commendation 20220318
	Slattery LIFE SAVING commendation 20220318
	Civilian Edward Lehan LIFE SAVING commendation 20220318
	EMS Life Saving Proclamation (K.DEAN)

	2b  Monthly Report June Community Relations
	2b  Monthly Report June Finance
	2b  Monthly Report June Parks and Recreation
	2b  Monthly Report June Police
	Police LPPD- June 2022 BOS

	2b  Monthly Report June Public Works
	2b Monthly Report June Community Development
	2c1 Bill Pay List
	2c2 Treasurers Report
	2c3a Audubon Square V Escrow Release No. 7 final
	2c3b Courts at Brynwood Phase II Escrow Release No. 6
	3a Waiver of land development 3392 Ridge Pike Mrozinski Memo
	3a Waiver of land development 3392 Ridge Pike Plan
	3a Waiver of land development 3392 Ridge Pike Woodrow letter
	3c Public Works truck purchase proposal
	3c 
	2022 Proposal for truck purchases

	2022 Capital Equipment

	3d Proposal for real estate tax audit
	3f Application for Montgomery County Transportation Program grant
	Resolution 2022-22 - Montco CTP
	Final Estimate - LPT - Montco CTP




